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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE UNITED STATES
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS
FORT WORTH DIVISION
NATHANIEL JACKSON,
A Minor, Et Al
VS. NO. 3152, Civil
O, C. RAWDON,
President of Baard of Trustees

of Mansfield Independent
School District

BE IT REMEMBERED that on the 7th day of November,
A.D. 1955 the above styled and numbered cause came on for
hearing before Honorable Joe E. Estes, Judge, whereupon the

followling proceedings were had:

* % *

APPEARANCES:
CLIFFORD DAVIS, Fort Worth, Texes,
U, SIMPSON TATE, Dallas, Texas,

appearing for plaintiffs.

J. A, GOOCH, Fort Worth, Texas,

appearing for defendants,

* ¥ *



THE COURT: Counsel, at this stage of the proceeding
you are not insisting on this prayer that the Court should
convene a three Jjudge court for the purpose of declaring
Article VII, Section 7 of the Texas Constitution void, and
Article 2900 and applicable provisions that encompass the
requirement or sanction of racial discrimination in Articles
2922,(13) and 2922,(15) as to the Mansfield Independent School
District, are you?

MR, DAVIS: If the Court please, that matter is now
well settled.

THE COURT: I take it you are not asking that relief
here now?

MR. DAVIS: No.

THE COURT: ""In view of the decision of the Supreme
Court of Texas?

MR. DAVIS:i No, sir, Your Honor.

In that respect, Your Honor, that was because of
the action that occurred since that time.

THE COURT: Yes.
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3
MR, DAVIS: That I believe would relieve us on the

relief prayed in Paragraph 1 of our complaint, which is the
three Jjudge court section, Your Honor,

THE COURT: You withdraw that section of your prayer
under the ruling of the Supreme Court of Texas in the McKiﬁney
case handed down October 12th, I believe it was, 19557

MR, DAVIS: Your Honor, if they will admit that our
children were tendered for enrollment and that they were denied
the right and privilege of enrolling because of their color
then we will be ready to proceed only on the question of whether
or not it was in good faith.

MR, GOOCH: It 1s admitted in the answer that the
plaintiffs in this case were denied admission to the Mansfield
Indepéndent School District when they appeared there on
September 2, 1955. The rest of the allegations here, and other
matters are denied., We are perfectly willing to admit these
three persons appeared there through thelr attorney of record
and we will make that in court, that they appeared there on
September 2nd through their attorney of record in This case and
demanded admission to the school there in Mansfield.

MR. DAVIS: We are ready, Your Honor, on the one
issue,

THE COURT: Proceed, Counsel.

*® ¥ *
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NATHANIEL JACKSON,
a witness produced on behalf of the plaintiffs,vbeing first
duly sworn, testified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR, DAVIS:
Q Will you state your name to the Court, your name and
your residence, where you live?
A My name is Nathanlel Jackson, I live in Mansfield,
Texas.
Q Talk Jjust a little slower and Jjust a little louder

so the Court can hear you.

Where do you now go to school?
The I. M. Terrell.

Where is I. M. Terrell School?
Fort Worth.

And what is your grade level?

O P O P

Tenth.

Q You are in the tenth grade. How do you get from
Mansfield into Fort Worth?

A I ride a school bus they have.

Q Is that school bus a public school bus furnished by
the Mansfield School District?

A Yes.

Q What time are you required to get up in the morning



in order to catch that bus?

A 6:00 o'clock.

Q You get up about 6:00 o'clock. How far do you live - -
where do you cétch the bus in Mansfie}d to come to school here?

A Downtown.

Q Downtown. Now, how far do you live from where you
catch the bus?

A About two miles.

Q About two miles., Tell the Court how you get from
your home to where you catch the school bus?

A I walk.

Q You walk. About how long does it take you to walk
from your home to where you catch the school bus in Mansfield?

A About forty-five minutes.

Q Abouf forty~-five minutes, What time is the bus
scheduled to leave Mansfield en route to Fort Worth?

A T:30.

Q And about how long does it take it to get from where
1t leaves in Mansfield to where you get off at I. M. Terrell
School?

A About forty-five minutes to an hour.

Q I beg your pardon?

A It will take about forty-five minutes to an hour to
get to Fort Worth.

Q Does it make any stops between where you get off and
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where you get on?

. Yes.

Q Where is the other stop?

A James E. Guinn.

Q It goes by James E. Guinn before it gets to Terrell?
A (Witness nods head.)

Q What time do you arrive at the Terrell school house?
A Between 8;15 and 8:30.

Q What time does school take up at Terrell School?

A At 8:40.

Q Where do you go between the time you arrive at school

on the bus and the time for you to report to your class at the
first place where you report when you get in school?

A Oh, Just there on the campus.

Q Is the school open at that time? I8 the school
building open at that time?

2 (Witness nods head.)
Are you permitted to go inside?
Yes, sir.
You are permitted to go inside when you get there?

Yes, sir,

What time do you get out of school in the afternoon?

= 0 Pk O B O

At 3:40,
Q At 3:40., Now, about what time do you catch the bus

on your way back home from Fort Worth, back to Mansfield?

20



A About 3:45,

Q About 3:45, Does the bus take the same route going
back, that is, go by Terrell School and then on out to Mansfield?

A Yes, sir.

Q@  About how long does it take the bus then from the
time you leave Terrell High School to get you back to the point
where 1t discharges you in Mansfield in the afternoon?

A About forty-five minutes to an hour.

Q About forty-five minutes to an hour. About what time
do you get back in Mansfield in the afternoon and get off of
the bus?

A About 4:45,

Q About 4:45, Then how do you get home from where you
get off of the bus inrthe afternoon?

I walk.
About what time do you arrive at your home?
About 5:30 or 6:00.

I beg your pardon?

- 0 B2 O B

About 5:30.
Q About 5:30. Now, is there a bus coming by your home

that goes to the Mansfield High School?

A Yes, sir.

Q The bus does not - = you do not ride that bus inéo
town?

A No.
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Q You have to walk every day?

A Yes.

Q At the point where you catch the bus in Mansfield,
is there any shelter there for your protection from the weather
while you are waiting for the bus to arrive?

A No.
Q Where do you walt?
A On the streets.
Q Is it dark now by the time you get home in the after-
noon?

A Yes.

Q Do you have to leave home in the morning under cover
of darkness?

A Yes,

Q If you were enrolled in the Mansfield High School
about what time would you leave home in order to get to Mansfield
High School in time for school?

A About 8:00 o'clock.

Q Is that about the time the bus comes by your house
en route to the Mansfield High School?

A Yes, sir.

Q Now, what happens if you are late and miss the bus
coming into Fort Worth? Is there any method provided to get
you to school?

A No.

29
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Q
started?

A

Q
A
Q
A

Q

What happens?
I couldn't go to school that day.

Has that happened since the current school year

Yes,

Talk just a‘little bit louder so we can all hear you,
Do you participate in any activity at your school?
Yes, |

What do you participate in?

Basketball,

Are you permitted to stay-and practice basketball?

What time of the day do they practice basketball in your school,

when the season starts?

A

Q

At 4:00 o'eclock.

- When they start pbracticing basketball will you be able

to stay and practice and play ball with the boys ?

A

o b o

No.
Why?
Because I coﬁldn't get home in the evening,

Are there any other activities in your school you

would like to participate in?

O P O

j"

310

Yes.
Are you now participating in them?
No.,

Why?
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A Because I couldn't get home.

Q When your school has football games here at night, or
any other activity here at night is there any provision made
for you to come back and participate in your extracurricular,
or non-curricular, activities? |

A No.

MR, GOOCH: If the Court please, this is goling rather
far afield, the whole purpose of education, and for the further
reason, there is no method provided for anybody's students,
except through thelr parents, or their friends, to attend
extracurricular activities at night, football games or others.
The school for the'whites doesn't provide transportation to
night football games, or basketball games, or things of that
sort.

MR, DAVIS: If the Court please - -

THE COURT: I will overrule the obJjection.

Go ahead, Counsel.

MR, DAVIS: Thank you, sir.

MR, GOOCH: ©Note our exception.

Q (By Mr, Davis) ©Now, for those activities which are
held at your school at night, does the school board make any
provision for your attendance at those activities?

A No.

Q If you get back in to those activities, how would you

make it back in?

0y )
ﬂg
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A Well, I couldn't come back,
Q You wouldn't get back.

That is all, Your Honor.

* ® %

CROSS EXAMINATION

BY MR. GOOCH:

Q Nathaniel, when did you move into the Mansfield
Independent School District?

A August.

Q In August of this year?

A Yes, sir.

Q Where had you lived before?

A A% Fort Worth.

Q And you moved from Fort Worth to Mansfield in
August of 19557

A Yes, sir,

Q Were you already enrolled in I, M, Terrell High
School for the year 1955-56 at the time you moved to Mansfield?

A No.

Q Where had you attended school in Fort Worth prior to
the time you moved to Mansfield?

A Carvér.

Q At Carver?

A Yes, sir.

ey
Y
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Q Is that a Junlor high schoql?

A Yes.,

Q And when did you enroll in I. M. Terrell?

A On the Tth,

Q 7th of September?

A Yes.

Q Had you theretofore transferred out of the Mansfield

Independent School District prior to that time?

A I beg your pardon?

4] Had you transferred, or your parents transferred you
to I. M., Terrell prior to the time you enrolled on September
7th? Do you know when that transfer occurred?

A Well, they told me I couldn't go to school down there,
I would have to go to Terrell.

Q I didn't understand?

A Well, when Mr. Huffman said we couldn't go to school
down there I had to go to Tbrfell, I. M. Terrell School,

Q When did you talk to Mr. Huffman?

A On-September 2nd.

Q On September 2nd?

A Yes.

Q Now, I am trying to find out, 1f you know, and if
you don't know you can't answer 1t, is when you transferred
from the Mansfield Independent School District to the Fort

Worth Independent School District? You don't know?
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A No. It happened at the school down there.

Q I beg your pardon?

A I never have been down to school down there.

Q You never had been down to school in Mansfield, had
you?

A No.

Q Had: you ever attended any of the classes in Mansfield
School?

A No.

Q Never had. Did your people move down to Mansfield
in August?

A Yes.

Q Well, prior to that time, prior to August, you had
been enrolled in the -census of the Fort Worth Independent
Public School District, had you not?

A Yes, sir,

Q Now, tell me, if you will, how far it is from your
home to fhe bus stop where you‘pick up the bus to come down to
I. M, Terrell?

A It is about two miles.

Q Is it over two miles, or under two miles, or do you

A I don't know.
Q You don't know. And doesn't the bus there at

Mansfield come to a £illing station where you are picked up
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to come to the I, M. Terrell School?

A Yes.

Q Isn't there a shelter at that filling station, and
also restrooms where you can have comfort at the time you are
waiting for that bus?

A Yes.

MR. GOOCH: That is all.

THE COURT: Any further questions?

MR, DAVIS: None further.

THE COURT: Nathaniel, what grade are you in?

A Tenth,

THE COURT: Now, what time does school open over
there at I. M. Terrell School?

A At 8:%0.

THE COURT{ I know, but what - - do you remember what
day of September it was?

A On the Tth of September.

THE COURT: On the 7th of September,
Are you doing well in school now, Nathanlel?

A Yes, sir,

THE COURT: Do you like 1t?

A Yes.

THE COURT: This suit, I believe, was filled in
October, after you had already commenced school. What 1s your

feeling, Nathaniel, about withdrawing out of I. M. Terrell in
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the middle of the year?

A Well - -

THE COURT: And transferring into a new school?
What is your own feeling about that?

A Well, it have been done, I wouldn't lose no time
going from one school to another,

MR, GOOCH: I can't hear, Your Honor,

THE COURT: Will you repeat that for them so they
can hear, Nathaniel?

A There is no time lost going from one school %o
another, I would be going‘to school all the year, it would
Just be a transfer, is all,

THE COURT: Have you got any feeling about, yourself,
about, I mean, is there any emotional reason, or reason inside
of your mind and heart that makes you, in the middle of the
year,‘want to move from the school Jou are in now and soing as
well as you have been, to another school?

A No.

THE COURT: There is no reason in your mind why you
want to do that, is there, Nathaniel?

A Well, it is more convenient,

THE COURT: I see. That is all.

MR. DAVIS: That is all, Your Honor.

w % %
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FLOYD STEPHENSON MOODY,

a witness produced on behalf of the plaintiffs, being first

duly sworn, testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR, DAVIS:

Q

live?
A
Q
A

Q

nature at
A
Q
A

Q

Will you state to the Court your name and where you
Floyd Stephenson Moody. I stay in Mansfield,

Where are you now 1in school?

I. M., Terrell.

Do you take part in any athletic programs of any

I. M. Terrell School?

Yes.

What?

Play football.

You play football. When do you have opportunity to

practice your football?

A

= O O

Q

In the evening.

In the evening?

Yes, sir.

What time do you get through?
About 5:30.

Is there any provision made by the board for your

transportation homw after you participate 1ln that athletic



activity?

O = O B O
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No, sir,

How do you get home?

I have to catch my uncle;

About what time do you get home in the afternoon?
About 7:00 o'clock.

And how do you get from where you leave in town there

back to your home in the afternoon?

A

Q
A
Q
2\
Q
A
Q
A

Q

Walk.

About how far do you live from it?

About two and a half miles.

Where did you go to grade school?

In Mansfield Elementary School.

How many grades did'you complete down in Mansfield?
Eight,

You completed the eighth grade?

Yes, sir,

When did you transfer out of the Mansfield School

District into the Fort Worth District?

A

Q

In '54, I think.

Was 1t at the time you completed the eighth grade

down there?

A

Q

A

Yes, sir.

Did you transfer the next year?

Yes, sir.
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* MR. DAVIS: No further questions.

* % X

CROSS EXAMINATION
BY MR. GOOCH:

Q Floyd, what grade are you in at I. M. Terrell?

A Tenth.

Q Are you passing your work?

A Pardon?

Q Are you passing your work?

A Yes, sir.

Q You are with a group you were with last year, are

you not? Your classmates?

A Yes, sir.

Q And you transferred tothe Fort Worth Independent
School District in the year 19547

A Yes, sir.

Q And then transferred again in the year 1955?

A Yes, sir.

Q What courses are you taking, Floyd?

A Well, I take English and Algebra and World History,
and I take a trade course in Machine Shop.

Q You are taking a trade course in Machine Shop ?

A Yes, sir.

Q Do you like that course in Machine Shop?
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A Yes, sir, it is all right.

Q Do you know whether you can get a course in machine
shop work at Mansflield High School?

& No, sir, I don't know,

Q You don't know whether you can or not?

A Nuh-uh.

Q Did you take this Machine Course voluntarily or was
it forced upon you? .

A I took it voluntarily.

Q Did you want to take a vocational course such as
Machine Shop?

;Y Yes, sir.

Q If you had to - - your cholce, would you go back to
Mansfield, or would you go on with your course you are taking,
for this year?

A Go back to Mansfield,

Q You would go back to Mansfield, even though you had
to give up some of the courses you are now glven ln Fort Worth,
is that correct?

A Yes, sir.

Q Is that because of convenience?

A Yes, sir,

Q Now, do you know - - you say you play football at
I. M., Terrell. The white boys that play ball at Mansfileld,

there is no provision made for a bus to take them home after

¥y *’;
o/
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the football game, is there?

A No, sir.

Q Then, the football players have to rustle their own
transportation to and fro, if they are going to participate in
outside activities, do they not?

A Yes, sir,

Q The other boys at I. M. Terrell have to provide their
own transportation after footbhall practice and games; do they
not?

A Yes, sir.

Q Now, at the time you applied for entrance into the
Mansfield Independent School District,I believe you sald you
went down there on September 2nd. Is that when you went down?

A Yes, sir.

Q Who went with you on that occasion?

A Mr. I. M. Reed and Mr., Davis, and Mr, John F, Lawson,
and myself and Nathaniel Jackson.,

Q Mr. T. M. Moody went with you?

A Yes, sir.

Q And who else?

A Mr, Davis.

Mr., Davis. That is one of your‘lawyers here in the

O

case?

e

Yes, sir.

Q Who else?
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Mr, John L. Lawson.
T. M. Moody and Davis and who was the other?
John F, Lawson.
John F, Lawson?
Yes. o
Who is John F, Lawson?
He is one of the - - one of the trustee men.
He 1s what?
I don't know.
You don't know who he is?
No, sir.
Does he live in Mansfield?
Yes, sir, he is staying there.

That is what I am trying to find out. Does he have

any children in school, or do you know?

A

Q

Algebra?

A

o » D

Yes, sir.
What school do they go to?
Mansfield Elementary School.

I see.

You said you were taking English, and what else?

Yes, silr,
And what else?
World History.

History?
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Q
school
A
there.

Q

go?

22

DAVIS:

system?

Yes, sir,
And what else?
A trades course in Machine Shop.
Trade course, Machine Shop, i1s that what you are saying?
Yes, sir.
And what else?
That is all.
You are taking four courses?
Yes, sir.
MR, GOOCH: I believe that is all.
* * *

REDIRECT EXAMINATION
Floyd, why did you transfer into the Fort Worth
Because they wouldn't let me to go the school down
Did they have a high school there where colored could
No, sir,

MR, DAVIS: That 1s all.

THE COURT: Floyd, are you happy and doing well at

I. M, Terrell?

A

e

(o

Yes.
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THE COURT: That is all.

* ¥ ¥

R. L. HUFFMAN,
a witness produced on behalf of the plaintiffs, being first
duly sworn, testified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR, TATE:

Q Mr. Huffman, will you please tell the Court your name?

A I am R. L., Huffman.

Q And what is your occupation, sir?

A I teach school.

Q You are a teacher. Do you hold any other official
capacity other than a teacher?

A Superintendent.

Q And you are superintendent of what schools, sir?

A Mansfield Public Schools.

Q 211 right, sir, how long have you been superintendent
of the Mansfield Public Schools?

A This is my twelfth year.

Q This is your twelfth year.

How many rooms does your high school in Mansfield

have, Mr. Huffman?

A Ten regular class rooms in the main building.

Q Ten regular, yes, sir. Now, besides your regular

pie

sa)
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class rooms, what other rooms do you have?

A We have one room for vocational agriculture.

Q Any other rooms?

A That is all.

Q All right, sir. How many high school teachers do you
have, Mr, Huffman?

A Counting everyone there are fifteen.

Q There are fifteen. Do you teach a course in English,

Mr. Huffman, for tenth grade?

A Yes, sir, we do.

Q Do you teach a course in Algebra for tenth graders?

A Yes, we do.

Q Do you teach a course in ﬁorld History for tenth
graders?

A Yes, sir,

Q Do you have any trade or shop courses, other - -

A We have what we call a farm shop course in connection

with vocational agriculture.

Q Yes, sir,

A It doesn't carry regular shop work, though.

Q All right, sir. Now, Mr., Huffman, there 1s on file
here in this lawsuit a motion by the defendants to dismiss this
lawsuit upon a certain set of facts, and I believe you signed
that, an affidavit certifying that those facts were true?

A Yes, sir.
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Q@  Is that true? Then, you are familiar with the facts
that are given in support of this motion, is that right, sir?

A I think so.

Q All right, sir. Now, you said in your motion, Mr,
Huffman, that some time after the ruling of the Supreme Court
on May 31, 1955 you had a discussion on the question of what to
do about this decision, |

Tell us about those discussions. With whom did you
have these discussions?

A Well, the first, of course, was brought up in regular

board meeting.

Q Yes, sir.

A And then from there we discussed it as board members,
Q Yes, sir.

A With the citizenship of the town.

Q Now, when was 1t first brought up in a board meeting?
A You mean this particular case here?

Q Well, yes, sir, any discussion that you had? You
said you had several discussions, and I Just wanted to know when
you had your first discussion?

A I doubt if I could tell you the exact date, because
1t has been discussed almost at each board meeting.

Q Yes, sir,

A For the last number of board meetings.

Q Yes, sir. That was beginning back in last fall, or
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last spring or when?

A Oh, as far back as three or four years.

Q Three or four years. All right, sir, when you first
started discussing it what did you talk about? What did you
say among yourselves?

A In regard to - -

Q This question of segregation.

A What provislons could be made, and how could they be
made.

Q What provisions for what, Mr. Huffman?

A In regard tothe request of the colored people.

Q For what? What did they request, sir?

A For admittance into Mansfield High School.

Q Yes, sir. And you were discussing what provisions
you could make for them?

A Yes, sir.

Q What did you decide?

A Well, at the initial meetings we came up with no
definite plan.

Q Yes, sir. So, at your initial meetings you had no
plan at all.

A1l right, sir. Now, I believe that you say in your
statement that on or about'July 26, 1955 your board passed a
résolution, and the nature of that resolution was that you

would keep your schools segregated during the year 1955-56, is

&0
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that true?
A Right.
Q How did you arrive at the conclusion to do that?
A We had only had the request some few days and there

wasn't time enough to work out the details that would be
necessary in desegregating from a two school system to a single
school system.

Q Yes, sir. Now, you knew about the Supreme Court's
ruling in 1954, didn't you?

A That is right.

Q And you also knew about the Supreme Court's ruling
in 19557%

A That is right.

Q A11 right, sir, and your contention ls now, you did
not have time to make preparation for the consolidation?

A Well, sir, the Court ruled we had a reasonable
length of time to meet the different requirements, and we did
not have time on that short notice to work it out.

Q Now, on the short notice, are you talking about the

notice from May 17, 1954 - -

A Yes, sir.
Q - - until July, 19557
A 155, May of '55.

Q Yes, sir, and you did not have the time between May

of 1955 and September 2, 1956 - - excuse me, please - - let's

Gl
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go back.,
You did not have the time between May 31, 1655 and
September 2, 1955 to carry out the mandate of the Court, 1is
that your position, sir?

A That is right.

Q Yes, sir. Now, what conditions would you have to
bring about in order to be able to carry out the Court's
mandate?

A May I elaborate on these questions?

Q Well, sir, I would like for you to Jjust sort of give
a responsive answer to my questlons.

THE COURT: Just answer his question.

A That would be hard to answer in a concise statement,
due to the fact that we have been in the twofold school system
so long in Texas that we undo something in sixty days, or
thereabouts, that had been running over a hundred years, and
we just didn't have time to enter into the many details that
would have had to be worked out in order to sell such a program
in the local community.

Q Yes, sir. Now, the many detaills is what I want to
find out. What were some of those detalls?

A Well, it would be the breaking down of the old
traditions that had been established, it would be getting two

different types of people ready for something new, which the

board deems will take time.
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Q It would be the breaking down of old traditions and
getting the people to accept the change?

A That is right.

Q Is that right?

A Getting both sides of the question in a position to
accept.

Q Yes, sir. So that was the barrier that you had, that
was the thing that kept you from going ahead, is that correct?

A That is one of the main barriers.

Q A1l right, sir, did you have any others?

A Well, not other than just the fact that we had detalls
to work out in placing these students in classes where they
have not been, with the whites and the colored, and this could
not be done, we thought, Jjust overnilght.

Q It couldn't be done, it was Just a matter you didn't
feel like putting white and colored chlldren in the same room
overnight, so long as - - is that 1t?

A Not under the school conditions.

Q Under the school conditions?

A Yes, s8ir.

Q Now, sir, you said further along, that after you had
adopted this resolution to the effect that there would be no
integration in your schools during the school year 1955-56,
you attempted to work out the problem.

What did you do in your attempt to work out the

i
L



30

problem?

A Well, on one occasion Attorney Davis came to our
office along with a couple of other men and asked that a bus be
added on to the transportation of the Mansfield Public Schools
to transport these colored students into Fort Worth.

Q Yes, sir.

A And from there a committee of the board, not the
board entirely, but a committee from the board, went in person
to these homes of these boys and girls and made a personal
survey.

Q Yes, sir,

A Of what had been requested,

Q And what did your committee find?

A They found, with perhaps one or two possible
exceptions,that is what the people wanted, what the students
wanted, and what their dads and mothers wanted.

Q What was it that they wanted?

A Those preferred to ride the bus - -

Q Yes, sir.

Y - = in to the Fort Worth public schools for their
education.

Q So, your attempt was an attempt to make an ad justment
so that the negroes could come in to Fort Worth to school?

A That 1s their request.

Q Yes, sir.

N
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Yes, sir, that was theirs.

I am not asking you, sir, for their request, I am

asking you what you did?

A
Q
.}
Q
golng to
A

Q

That was our first move.

Yes, sir. All right, now, sir.

And the second, we went from there - -

Well, is this all a part of this attempt you are
talk about?

Following up on this resolution,

Yes, sir, All right, you say in your motion that you

also attempted to do the best possible thing under the

¢ircumstances.

A

What did you decide was the best possible thing?
To grant thelr request and put on the bus,
To grant thelr request to put on the bus.

All right, sir, you say a little further along in

your motlon that you discussed this matter with the negro

children.

When you discussed 1t with them, Mr. Huffman, what

did you say to them?

A

This was discussed in the presence of theilr parents,

one or the other of thelir parents, or guardian,

Q

A

desire,

=l o

(¥ {)

Yes, sir.

And the question was to find out if that was their
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Q In other words, you went to find out whether or not
they wanted to continue to go to a segregated school in Fort
Worth?

A That 1s right.

Q That is what you did?

A And if they wanted to ride the bus, put it on.

Q Yes, sir. Which would mean they would continue to go
to a segregated school. All right, sir,

In your opinion that was the most equitable thing to
do?

A Yes, sir, that is right.

Q Yes, sir. Then, you say you discussed the matter with
their parents. When you talked with their parents what did you
say?

A They were talked to together; we did not take the
advantage of the child, we went to his home,

Q But you went to their home?

A That is right, we went to their home.

Q When you got to thelr home, Mr, Huffman, what did you
ask the child or the parent?

A The first question was, 1f they were goling to continue
to go to high school, if they intended to go to school next year.

Q Do you intend to go to school next year?

A Yes, sir. We find a lot of the boys and girls drop

out of school during summer and never enter in the fall. Ve

0
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wanted to know if they were going.

Q

A

All right, sir, what else did you ask them?

And then 1f fthey preferred to go to the Fort Worth

Public Schools.

Q

Then you asked them 1f they preferred to go to the

Fort Worth Public Schools?

A

Q

A

Yes, sir.

I see. What else d4id you ask them?

Then, if it was Justifiable to put the bus on and they

all wanted the bus,

Q

A

Q

All right, sir, and what else did you ask them?
I believe that is about all.
All right, sir.

Now, you say a little farther along in your motion,

Mr. Huffman, that on or about September 27, 1955 a committee

was appointed by your board to study the segregatlon problem.

A
Q
A

Q

Who was on that committee?

Two board members and myself.

Who were the board members?

Mr, Ira Gibson and Mr, Wilshire, 0. M. Wilshire.

Yes, sir., That committee was appointed on September

27, 1s that correct, sir?

A

Q

A

Yes, sir, along about that time.

Yes, sir.

At a regular board meeting.
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Q Yes, sir. How many times has your committee met?
A The committee has met at random, I don't know how
many times.
Then, I saild no official meeting, though, within

the building, other than the regular board meetings.,

Q S0, your committee, as such, has not met, is that
true?

A Not as an individual committee at the regular meeting.

Q Yes, sir. What you do is, when you are together you

sort of talk about the thing a little bit, ls that what you do?
Is thatwhat you do?

A Well, the members of the committee have confronted
both white and colored in regard to thelr ldeas and their
desires in this question,

Q You have asked the white people whether they wanted
their children to go to school witﬁ negroes or not?

A No, that is not the questions.

Q Well, what do you ask them, sir?

A What might be done in order to break down these old
traditions and get ready for any new conditions that might be
brought about.

Q All right, sir.

A We also asked - - went to the substantial colored

people of the community and asked them their deslres and wishes

in the matter.
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Q Now, you say you went to substantial colored people.
What are substantial colored people, sir?

A The older citizens who make up the negroes living in
the community through the period of years,

Q Yes, sir. Do they have school age children, or do you
know?

A Some do. Quite a few of then.

Q Yes, sir., Have you talked with anybody else about 1t?

A Within the community?

Q Anybody at all? I am Jjust trying to find out what
your committee has done.

A We have talked to school people.

Q Yes, sir. What did you say to them?

A We discussed this question that we are confronted
with, from several angles, with other school people over the
state.,

Q With other school people., And what did you decide
after you talked with them?

A We came to no conclusion,

Q | No conclusion at all. Did you discuss this matter
with the bus driver, Lawyer Stroud?

A In what respect, sir?

Q Well, sir, I can't answer that, I am trying to find
out what your committee did. I am Just trying to find out if

your committee had a conference with a Lawyer Stroud?

bR |
2
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A Just the school board from that standpolnt, because
he was employed.

Q Yes, sir, I mean, you haven't talked with him about
this matter of segregation?

A Well, we have discussed his condition on the bus.

Q And what did you find out?

A His report that everything was in good order.

Q No, Jjust a minute, sir, I am not asking you - - don't
testify for him, now.

What did you ask him?

A We did nothing more than discuss with Lawyer Stroud
any more than employment as a bus driver.

Q Oh, I see, you. jJjust wanted to know, you Jjust asked
about him to see if he was doing his work, is that right?

A He had been contacted.

Q You didn't seek any information from him wifth respect
to the efficacy of continulng segregated schools?

A No.

Q I see, sir.

Now, Mr. Huffman, I believe that you say in your
motion that at the time school opened you were bound by the
conditions of Article VII, Section 7, of the Constitution of
Texas, is that true?

A That is right.

Q Then, everything that you did was done under the



37 |

condition that you had to abide by Article VII, Section 7, of

the Constitution of Texas, 1s that right, sir?

A Being a salaried head of a foundation school receiviné

their funds as such, the board had no other choice at that timeL

Q And Article VII, Section 7 of the Constitution of

|

Texas made it mandatory that you keep your children segregated?

A Yes.
Q And you were obeying that mandate?
A Yes.
Q Yes, sir.
I believe that you also say that at all times in
your planning and working you were working in obedience to
Article 2900 of the Revised Civil Statutes of Texas.

Are you familiar with that section, sir?

A Well now, I don't know it by the name, but I am sure--

Q That is the part which says that no white child shall

attend a school provided for colored children and no colored

children shall attend a school provided for white children.

You were obeying that mandate of the Texas law, were

you not, sir?
A That is right.
Q Yes, sir. Then everything which you did was done
with an eye to abiding by the Texas law, 1s that right, sir?
A No, sir, we also were considering the recent ruling

of May, of the Supreme Court of the United States.
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Q Yes, sir, but you do say in your motion that at that
time these sectlons, Section 7 of Article VII of the Constitution
of Texas were operative, and that they were mandatory on you.
You say that in your sworn statement here.
A I don't belileve we use the word "mandatory" there.
Q All right, sir, I will ask you if you recognize that
document?
A That 1s right.
Q Then this is a true copy of your motion?
A That is right.
Q Yes, sir.

I now invite your attention to page 5 of the document
which you have identified as a copy of your motion, and I will
ask you to read for the Court paragraph 2.

A "Prior to the filing of the instant suit Section 7
of Article VII of the Constitution of the State of Texas was,
so far as these defendants were concerned, the law of the State
of Texas, which law was mandatory that these defendants operate
segregated schools for white and negro students in their
district,”

Q Thank you, sir; thank you, sir.

A May I say there, I thought you were talking, on the
word "mandatory", in regard to the school board's resolution.
I believe that was our toplec of discussion.

Q Yes, sir. Now, sir, I believe that on page 6 of
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your motion you point to the fact that on or about October 12,
1955 the Supreme Court of the State of Texas expressed 1ltself
on the validity of the consititutional provisions and statutes
in question, and that you néw know that those statutes are
unconsitutional, is that right, sir?

A Yes.

Q Do you now feel hound to obey them?

A No, I do not.

Q Yes, sir., What, Mr,., Huffman, has your board done
by way of official action with respect to the problem of
segregation in your schools since the 12th day of October, 1955¢%

A Officially, it has done nothing.

Q Nothing at all, yes, sir.

Your school board does operate a bus from Mansfield
to Fort Worth, we have agreed on that, haven't we?

A Yes.

Q Do any white children travel from Mansfield to Fort
Worth on that bus? |

A No.

Q Do any white children travel from Mansfield to Fort
Worth for their high school training on any other buses?

A Not that I know of.

Q- Yes, sir. And the purpose of that bus is to transport
school children from the Mansfiéld Independent School District

to the Fort Worth Independent School District to recelve thein
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high school training, is that right, sir?

A (Witness nods head,)

Q  Yes, sir. The Mansfield Independent School District|
does operate a public high school, is that right, sir?

A That is right.

Q Yes, sir. What is the average dally attendance at
your high school, Mr, Huffman?

A Well, it runs about 262,

Q About 262, How many of those 262 students, Mr.
Huffman, are high school children who are transferred into the

Mansfield Independent School District from outside the school

district?
A I do not have that exact number.
Q Yes, sir., Could you give us an estimate?
A I will say it will run over one hundred.
Q It will run over one hundred?
A Yes.

Q Mr. Huffman, you have more than a hundred white, high

school children who are transferred into the Mansfield Independent

School District from areas outside the geographical limitations

of your school district, is that right?

A Not outside the geographical, outside of the - -

Q Corporate?
A The corporate, yes, sir.,
Q Yes, sir. How many negro children, or do you know,

N
N



b3
Mr., Huffman, are transferred from your school district to Fort
Worth?
A I believe it 1is approximately twelve.
Q Approximately twelve. And those twelve children are
spread over the four high school grades?

A That is right.

Q Yes, sir. Mr. Huffman, what are the health require-
ments for a child to attend the Mansfield Independent School
District public schools?

A On enrollment - -

Yes, sir,

- = we have no set - -

No health requirements at all?
Not as far as I know.

Do they have to be vaccinated?
No vaccination required.

No inoculation?

Not required.

Not required?

- O > O > O » © P> O

Tt is administered through the school year, but not
required. |
Q Yes,sir., Certainly, there is no conditlon in your
school district that would not be in the Fort Worth School
District, is that right? In other words, you don't have any

higher requirements than the Fort Worth School District?

=
o
W91 |
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A Not that I know of.

Q So that, if a child has all of the mental - - excuse
me, medical, if he has met all of the medical requirements for
admission to the Fort Worth schools he would have also satisfied
the medical requirements of your school, is that right, sir?

A I think so.

Q Yes, sir. Do you know, Mr, Huffman, what the
approximate distance is from Fort Worth to Mansfield?

A Approximately?

Q Yes, sir.

A Some 18 or 20 miles.

Q Some 18 or 20 miles?

A T believe it is 18 from the courthouse.

Q Yes; sir. The enrollment at your school, your high
school, on the 2nd day of September, 1955, was certainly no
larger than it is today, 1s that true?

A Now, I did not give you the nerollment awhile ago.
You asked for the ADA. |

Q ADA?

A Average dally attendance.

Q Let's go into this enrollment business then. What
was the enrollment in your high school on the 2nd day of

September, 1955%

A T do not know the exact number of enrollments on that

day, T do not have that at hand.
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d you give us the approximate?

oximately two hundred sixty-nine, or seventy,

two hundred seventy-nine.

Q
A
Q
A

Q

™o hundred sixty-nine or - -

Two

hundred seventy-nine or eighty.

Two hundred seventy-nine?

T™wo hundred seventy-nine.

A11

right. Will Your Honor indulge me Just a

minute, please, sir?

Q

THE COURT: Yes.

(By Mr, Tate) WMr. Huffman, did you receive a

subpoena to come here and testify today?

A

Q
with you?

A

Q
that have
matter?

A

Q

= O =

O

Yes,

And

One
Yes,

been

That
Yes,
They
Yes,
They

Well

did that subpoena request that you bring anything

of them did.
sir. Were you asked to bring certain letters

exchanged between you and Mr, Davis in this

is right.

sir. Did you bring - -

are in the hands of my attorney.
sir.

were already in his possession,

, I would like for you to get them, 1f you would.
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MR., GOOCH: May I ask what letter you refer to?
Your subpoena, as I understand, is blanket.

MR., TATE: Well, may it please the Court, I might be |
testifying here if I answer his question, but what I wanted - -

THE COURT: Just ask the witness questlons with
respect to letters he has and present them here.

MR. GOOCH: I will furnish him everything I have herq.

Q (By Mr. Tate) Now, Mr. Huffman, I believe you
testified that some time during the summer you recelved a
petition from some of the patrons of your school that thelr
children be admitted to your school, or at least that you carrﬁ
out the mandate of the Supreme Court of the United States.

Do you know roughly when you receilved that petition?

A May I get the petition?

Q Yes, sir; yes,sir.

A Received July 26, 1955.

Q Yes, sir. It was the next day then that you '
appointed this committee to study the problem, wasn't 1t, the
segregation, you appointed the committee on & ~July . 27, yes,i
sir.,

A That 1s right.

Q Now, I believe you testified that you were acting
at the request of the parents when you transferred these
children to Fort Worth, and that one of the lawyers in this

lawsuit had concurred in that.

-~
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Do you have a letter which you received from Attorney
L. Clifford Davis dated August 10, 19557
A That is right.
Q Would you let me see it, sir?
I will ask the Clerk to mark it as P-1,
(The instrument above referred
to was here marked
Plaintiffs' Exhibit Number 1,
for identification.)
Q (By Mr. Tate) I hand you now what has been 1dentifie§
as Plaintiffs' Exhibit Number 1, a letter addressed to Mr. R. L:
Huffman, Superintendent of Schools at Mansfield, Texas, dated |
August 10, 1955, over the signature of L. Clifford Davis, and I
will ask you if that is the letter that you recelved from Mr.
Davis? |
A It is.
Q Would you read that letter to the Court, please, sir?
A "August 10, 1955. Mr. R. L. Huffman, Superintendent
of Schools, Mansfield, Texas.
"Dear Mr. Huffman: Patrons in the Mansfield School
District with whom I held conferences on Monday and Tuesday and |
then again on today have requested me to advise the school board
that their opinion with reference to the school policy is clearly
expressed in the petition filed with your office, and they
request the board to comply with the law of the land, beginning

in September, 1955. Please advise me immediately the position
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of the board on this matter.”
Q Yes, sir.
A "Yours very truly, L. Clifford Davis."

Q Yes, sir. Now, did you answer that letter, Mr,

- Huffman?

A We did.

Q Have you got a copy of your answér?

A I have.

Q Sir?

A I have.

Q Yes, sir. Would you let me see it, sir?

(The instrument above referred
to was here marked
Plaintiffs'! Exhiblt Number 2,
for identification.)
Q (By Mr, Tate) I now hand you, Mr. Huffman, what has
been identified as Plaintiffs'! Exhibit Number 2, a letter
dated August 15, 1955, addressed to Mr., L. Clifford Davis, and

I will ask you if that is a true copy of a letter that you

sent to Mr, Davis?

A It is.

Q T would ask you to read that letter to the Court.

A "pugust 15, 1955. Mr, L. Clifford Davis, Attorney- |
At-Law, %013 East Ninth Street, Fort Worth, Texas.

"Dear Mr. Davis: In regard to your letter of

70
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'August 10, 1955, may I call your attention to an earlier letter
in April wherein you stated that patrons of the Manéfield School
District had certain grievances that you wished to disquss with
this office, A meeting was arranged, and you and a party of
. three met with me and made a2 certain - - and made certain
requests, one of which was in regard to a school owned and
operated bus to transport colored high school students to Fort
Worth. You were told that this matter would be presented to
the school board for their action. The board did act upon it
and agreed to institute a bus if such was Justifiable, and such
arrangements could be made through the County Superintendent's

Office,

"aApproval for such a bus route was promised through
the County Superintendent!s Office. At least one of the patents,
guardians, or some adult member of the family of every colored
high school student in the Mansfield High School District has
been contacted by board members, The desires of each of the
above persons were obtalned in regard to such a bus. After
this information was received and found to be in favor of such
a bus réute arrangements have been made to start the bus as
requested this September, Since arrangements have been.made
to grant the patrons' request, and at their more recent desires,
that the bus be operated, and since the laws of our state set
up a dual school system, one for negroes and one for whites,

and since we have had no notice of any change in such state

-2
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laws, my board feels that untll these and other obstacles have
been worked out the board passed a resolution to continue with
the dual school system for the school term 1955-56, until
further study - - untll further study of the problem can be
made, the board feels that in the future after enough time has
elapsed to work out some of the complications which arise in
changing from a dual to a single school system, such request
can be granted,

"Sincerely, R. L. Huffman,"

Q Thank you very kindly, sir.

I believe that your letter reveals, sir, that the
original request for the bus was made in April of 1955, is that
right, sir?

A It was in the spring.

Q Yes, sir.

A I don't remember the exact date.

Q Yes, sir. And at the time that that request was made
it was simply a request that you provide transportation to Fort
Worth for high school children, is that right?

A _ By bus.

Q Yes, sir.

A By school owned bus.

Q Yes, sir. Now, negro children have gone out of the
Mansfield Independent School District to Fort Worth to get theipr

|  high school education for a number of years, haven't they?

re¢
i A
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A That is right.
Q And up to that time you had given them no transporta-

tion at all?

A No, we had given them transportation by commercilal
bus.

Q By commercial bus. But you had not provided a school
bus?

A No.

Q And this was simply a request that the school board
provide a bus 1f 1t intended to continue to send them to Fort
Worth, is that right?

A Yes.

Q And then the fifth paragraph of your letter indicates
very clearly that what you were doing in providing this bus was
abiding the laws of Texas as you understood them, is that
correct, sir?

A (Witness nods head).

Q Yes, sir,

A And meeting the desires of the people.

Q Yes, sir. The desires of the people and the desires
of the laws of Texas; if it had been the desire of the people,
and these are the negro people, is that 1it?

A Uh-huh.

Q That their children, if 1t had been your understand-

ing that it was the desire of the negro people to send thelr
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children to the publlic school in Mansfield, would you have
abided that desire?

A Not at that time.
Q Yes, sir,

The indulgence of the Court for Just a minute, please,
sir,

I pass the witness.

THE COURT: vWe will take a fifteen minute recess to

give the court reporter an opportunity to rest.

(Short recess.)

* ¥ *

| CROSS EXAMINATION
::' BY MR. GOOCH:

Q Mr. Huffman, in cross examination you have testifiled
generally to the matters set forth =in the answer filed by
yourself and by the trustees of the Mansfield Independent School
District.

I would like, if I may, to ask you a few questions
on particular items.

Tt has been established by your testimony that this
special bus for the bringing of negro high school students from
Mansfield to I. M. Terrell at Fort Worth, and the Junior high, |

is approximately 40 miles 1n length, that is, a round trip.

-3
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| Is that approximately correct, or would it be a little less?

A It hgs not been set officially by the state this year,
but I would estimate 1t would be less than that from Mansfield.

Q All right now, where does the bus originate in
Mansfield?

A I don't know the name of that street, but it is near
a filling station right in the heart of our little business
district,

Q Is there shelter during rainy season for the boarding
and debarking from the bus as it leaves the terminal and returns
to the terminal; and also tollet facilities?

A There are, they are available there.

Q All right. You have routes in the Mansfleld Independ-
ent School District other than the one that travels to I. M.
Terrell School?

A Right.

Q How many established routes do you have in the
Mansfield Independent School District that are operated by
gchool buses of the district?

A Eight other routes.

Q Then you have nine school buses in all that transport
children to school in the Mansfleld Independent Schooi District?

A (Witness nods head.)

Q Now, give me the mileage of the routes other than the

one that comeg to Fort Worth?

=3
o84 |
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A These routes are set up by number, the numbers are .
given to us from the - - through the County Superintendent's ;
Office. j

Q And form a part of your official records?

A Yes, sir, it is on the state records.

MR, TATE: May it please the Court, may I take him on
voir dire for the purpose of an objection?

THE COURT: Yes, you may.

MR. TATE: Mr, Huffman, you say you get these reports;
from the superintendent's office. Is that the superintendent

at Austin?

A The routes are numbered through his office for
accounting purposes.

MR. TATE: Yes, sir. Do they give the mileage also?

A No, sir, they do not.

MR. TATE: May it please the Court, we are going to |
object to this type of testimony. There 1s no question here
about what other children do. The only question hefe is about
what has happened to these negro children. I think the Court
has already said there is no gquestion of any separate but equal
routes here, and all this can tend to do is to glive probative
value to some sort of equality. of negroes and whiltes, which o
think - -

THE COURT: I think it definitely goes to the good

faith of these people, though, and you brought cut in your own |

L
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evidence.the distance that was being traveled here, and I will
overrule the objection.

Q (By Mr. Gooch) In order to tie in with the objection,
I read from the complaint:

"The plaintiffs must arise earlier and return home
later than other non-negro pupils who live and reside within
the - = "

. THE COURT: Go ahead.
Q (By Mr. Gooch) I beg your pardon,
- Please give me the route numbers? Do they run from
one to eight, or do they have numbers?
A Our first route starts with Number 37.
Q A1l right, how long is Route Number 377

A 44 .6 miles,

Q What is your next route number?

A 38.

Q What 1s the length of that route?

A 46.4% miles.

Q And your next route?

A 39 is the next number and it is 46.6 miles.
Q Your next one, please?

A ko, fifty-six, - -

Q That is the number of the route, 407
A Number 40.

Q And the mileage?
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in miles?
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56.8.
Your next numbér?

41,

That 1s the number of your route, And the distance

59.6.

Your next number?

43 - - 46,

And what is the number of miles?

by .6,

Your next route?

Number 69,

And what is the mlleage on that route?
53.6.

Do you have another one?

Number 54,

And what is the milleage on‘that route?
72 miles.

Now, am I correct in stating that the school law

provides bus service is to be furnished only in the event a

child lives in excess of two miles away from a school building?f

A
Q
A
Q

That is right.
That is the state law, 1s 1t not?
State law,

On the routes you have detalled there, none of them

|
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are as short, the other elght routes that are used by the white
gtudents, and the other colored school of Mansfield Independent
School District, are not as short as 40 miles, is that correct?

A That is right.

Q About what time in the morning do the routes that you
have detailed there, the eight routes you run in to the Mansfiléd
S8chool,about what time do they depart in search of children to
bring them back to school?

A Three of those buses leave by T:00 o'clock or before
in the morning.

Q All right.

A The others leave at T7:10 or :15.

Q All right, and the others?

A Well, that is the general idea of the eight buses,
about three of them leave about 7:00 o'clock or before, and
the remaining number of buses leave between 7:10 and T:15.

Q And what time does your school open in Mansfield?

A We start our classes at 8:30,

Q Then if a bus leaves Mansfield around T7:00 o'clock
or 7:10, it will begin picking up students within ten minutes
after departure time, is that correct?

A That is about right.

Q And that student, the white students ride that bus

from say 7:10 or 7:20, and what time do they get to the school,

ordinarily?

79
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A About 8:10 or 8:15. |
Q Then some of those students, some of those white
students, are on that bus for a period of time up to two hours, |
is that correct - - no, I am wrong, it is about an hour, an

hour to an hour and ten minutes.

A We have two of -those buses there about an hour and

thirty minutes in length, routes.

Q A1l right. Now, what time does your school turn out}

in the evening?'
|

A It turns out at 3:15. ;
|

Q And the buses depart immediately after school 1s out,

or within a short time thereafter?

A Within three or four minutes. :

|

Q And does it take approximately the same length of time
to distribute these children as it does to gather them?

A That is right.

Q The buses leave about what? About 3:307?

A They leave about 3:;15, or :18, about 3:18.

Q About 3:15 or 3:18, and some of them an hour to an
hour and a half before the children are delivered to thelr
homes, is that correct?

A That is right. We have one route, if it 1s muddy it
takes them an hour and fifty minutes to make it.

Q The testimony was that the route that comes to I. M.

|
Terrell in Fort Worth leaves Mansfield about T7:30, is that

0 r;
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correct?

A I believe that 1s right.

Q And sbout what time does 1t return in the afternoon?

A He gets back and has his bus ready to put up about
h:25 or 4:30 in the afternoon.

Q 211 right, now, going to the white students in the
Mansfield High School that play football and indulge in other
forms of athletics, on those children who indulge in athletics
that require that they spend time past the regular curriculum,
do you provide transportétion home for them after football
practice or basketball practice?

A We do not.

Q Is it up to them to make it on home if they wish to
participate?

A That is right.

Q On the question of curriculum in the Mansfleld High
School, how many courses, accredited courses, do you offer in
the Mansfield Public High School?

A I believe it is thirty-two and a half.

Q You mentioned a moment ago that'there was - - you
taught English, Algebra, History and the like. What are your

facilities vocatlonally?

A We offer vocational agriculture and vocational home
making.
Q Do you offer any provision such as Shop Craft, or

a1
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mechanic's trade, or palnting, that is, commercial painting,
or anything of that sort?

A We do not. |

Q In the Mansfleld High School? And its credits are
what, now? Thirty-one what?

A Thirty-two and athalf.

Q Thirty-two and a half?

A I believe so,

Q The three students that are involved in this proceeding
and are named as plaintiffs, and bring it for themselves and as|
a class, did they make application for transfer to Fort Worth
prior to the beginning of the school year 19557

A I believe two of them did.

Q Now, the other one, Nathaniel Jackson, did he make
any application for transfer?

A He did not live in the Mansfield community at transfer
time.

Q A11 right., And the other two, the two Moodys did
make application for transfer?

A That 1s right. »

Q You spoke a moment ago of being, of participating
1n‘the funds program, that is the Gilmer-Alken Act, generally
described, 1s it not?

A That is right.

Q When these school children transfer from the Mansfileld

=
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Independent School District to the Fort Worth Indepéndent School
District what happens to the allotment for that child? Does
that stay at Mansfield or does it go to Fort Worth?

A The per capita set aside by the state goes with the
transfer.

Q And that goes for the entire year, 1ls that correct?

A That is right.

Q Do you know of your own knowledge the difference
between the educational facilities at I. M, Terrell and
Mansfield, or Jjust generally?

A Just generally.

Q All right, I will not ask you that question.

Tt has been established by attorneys for the plaintiffs
that the special bus from Mansfield to Fort Worth for these
students was put on at the request of the students themselves
and theilr counsel, who 1s now counsel in thls case, is that
correct?

A That is right.

Q You spoke also of resolutions of the board and of the
appointment of a committee to study segregation. I will ask
you to state whéther or not there has been constant, and many
conversations in your board relative to that problem?

A There has.

Q T will ask you to tell the Court whether or not you

believe, based on the discussions in your board, that if given

a3
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sufficient time you can and will work out the problem to the
mutual satisfaction of all the people in your community to the
best of your abllity?

MR, TATE: May it please fThe Court, we are going to |
object to his opinion about what the board 1s golng to do, the |
best evidence - - ,

THE COURT: It applies to what he will do.

MR, TATE: It applles to what he will do?

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. GOOCH: Of course, he could only act.in connectioﬁ
with the board.

THE COURT: That 1s correct.

Go ahead and answer the question,

A The school board is working on this problem and feels
when conditions have been made such, and justifiable, and takes
place throughout the entirety, that will be done.

Q (By Mr. Gooch) You havé no disposition, Mr. Huffman,
you personally, or in connection with being on the board, to
disobey any law of this land that has been pronounced by the
highest authorities, have you, sir?

A I have not.

Q You spoke earlier that 1t required, in your opilnion,
in your local situation, a course of education of both white
and colored to meet this problem, face 1%, and to go into an

integrated system with the least possible friction.
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In connection with that, I believe you testified that
you had talked with not only the whites, but with the colored
people who are permanent residents there, and I will ask you if
you are willing at this time, and have been, to listen to the
views and ldeas of any citizen in your community, looking towardg

a proper solution of this problem?

A We are, yes, sir.

Q And do you intend to continue your work on this probleﬁ
to the best of your ability?

MR, TATE: If 1t please the Court, he has got him on
eross examinationhe: is thelr witness, and I think he is testify-
ing for him now. I obJject to the attorney testifying for the
clientf- Let him ask him responsive questions,

THE COURT: You can ask him what are - -

Q (By Mr. Gooch) What do you hope to accomplish in
connection with the determination of this problem, Mr, Huffman?

A We hope to work out some means whereby that these thinés
can be handled in due process of time.

Q All right, at the time the three plaintiffs in this
case made application to you to entef Mansfield High School in
September of 1955 who was present?.

A Mr, T, M, Moody, Mr. John F, Lawson and Mr, Clifford
Davis and the three boys.

Q They came there with the boys at the time they asked

to be entered in school?

%
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That is right.

Is Mr, Lawson a resident of the Mansfield Independent |

School District?

A He 1s not, he lives in another school district.
MR, GOOCH: That is all for the present. i
THE COURT: - Any further questions?
MR. TATE? Yes, sir, please. 1

* ¥ %
REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. TATE: |
Q Mr. defman, does the Mansfield Independent School

District own this gasoline station of which you spoke, from

which your bus departs to Fort Worth?

= O O =

= O P O

It does noft.

Do you have any control over it?
We have no control over it.

Do you have any contract with 1t?
No contract with 1t.

Do you have any agreement with it?
Have agreement. -

What is that agreement?

That the bus may stand nearby there and wait for the

students to catch it.

Q

Yes, sir. Do you have any other agreement?
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A No.

Q No other agreement. Then, as a matter of fact, you
don't know whether those children can stand out of the rain
there or not, do you?

A They don't have to be in the rain, because the bus 1ls
stationed there and they get on 1t immediétely, if they see fit,
when they arrive at the bus.

Q That isn't quite my question, Mr., Huffman.

I asked you, do you know of your own personal knowledge
whether or not they might go into that bus station out of the
rain, if it was raining?

A They would be allowed to go in, yes.

Q You know that of your own personal knowledge?

A Yes, sir.

Q May I ask you how you found it out?

A Proprietor.

e And how did it come about?

A Well, we Jjust discussed with tThese people.

Q And what did you digeuss.

A About loading the bus there and them using it.

Q You agreed if the bus could depart there that you

would load it, is that as far as your agreement goes?

A That 1s all.

Q And you still don't know whether they can go out of

the rain or not, do you?
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No.

Do you know whether or not they could use the tollet

facilities there or not?

A

Q

not these

privately
A
Q
A
Q
District?

center of

A

He has a tollet for colored people, yes, sir,

Sir, that isn't quite my question.

I am asking you whether or not you know whether or

children have the right to use the tollets in this

owned and operated gasoline station?

That I can't, but I believe they do.

But you don't know of your own personal knowledge?
I do not.

What are the corporate limits of the Mansfield School
How far does this district run, roughly, from the
town as a radius?

Well, there are T4 square miles, T4.6 square miles,

I believe, in the district, and it goes to the Dallas County

line going east, which is approximately some eight miles - -

Q

o = O P

38

Yes, sir.

It extends south about seven.

Yes, sir.

North about seven.

Yes, sir.

And west about eight or nine miles.
West about eight or nine miles.

Of course, that is not a square,
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Q Yes, sir, I realize,

A It is panel-shaped.

Q Yes, sir, I realize that. Now, Mr, Huffman, you
operate a bug line numbered 37; you say that that bus leaves
Mansfield and goes out from the city 44 miles?

A That is on its return trip; these routes are set up,
double routes, daily, morning and afternoon.

Q It traverses - - yes, sir; yes, sir, And does 1t
at any time get more than eight miles west of Mansfleld?

| A This route goes east; I wouldn't think that at any
time it would be over ten miles at any one time from Mansfleld.

Q That is right. So, where is the most remote point
to the east that it goes?

A Tt is in another school district that it is serving.

Q That is right. It goes outside of your school
district?

A That is right.

Q Now, how many children does that line bring in?

A Approximately 60 students.

Q@ - And how many of that 60 live outside the Mansfield
Independent School District?

A I don't have that information.

Q | Could you give us an opinion?

A Probably half of them.

Q Probably half of them. Now, you have a bus line,
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8 that bus line go beyond the corporate limits of the ‘
|

Mansfield School Distriet? |

A

Q

46 miles right around in the school district?

O = H = O =

-three

O r O >

school

= O = O
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No, it does not.

It works right in the school district and travels

Yes.

Does 39 go outside the school district?

It does.

And how many students does that bring in?

Approximately forty-two or -three students.

A1l right, sir. And how many of those forty-two or
come from outside the school district?

Some sixX or seven,

Some six or seven.

Does 40 go outside your school district?

It does.

And how many students does it bring in?

About sixty-two or -three.

And how many of those are plcked up outside the
district? |

These are estimated figures, I would say 25 of them.\

Yes, sir. Does 41 go outside the school district?

It does.

And approximately how many students does it bring in?

About 50.
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Yes, sir. And how many of those are picked up out-

side the school district?

A

Q
A
Q
A

Q

Perhaps some 40 of those.

Yes, sir. Does 43 go outside the school district?
It does.

And how manﬁ students does it bring in?

About 65,

And how many of those are picked up outside the

Mansfield Independent School District?

A

Q

A

Q

Some eight or tems.- ..

Eight or ten?
Does 69 go outside the Mansfield School District?

It does.

And approximately how many students does 1t bring in?
Some 60 students.

Some 60, And how many of those are picked up outside

the school district?

A Ten or twelve, I would say.
Q Ten or twelve.
Does 54 go outside the school district?
A Yes, sir, 1t covers some seven or eight school |
districtse.
Q It covers some seven or eight school districts.
And how many students does it bring in?
A About 48 or 50.

Lo
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And how many of those are picked up outside your

school district?

A

= O PP O

Q

you tax?

Some twelve or [ifteen.

Now, does your school district have any taxing power?
It has.

Does 1t exercise that power?

It does.

Then you are authorized to levy and collect the tax -|

That is right.
- - for support of your schools? What properties do

Do you tax only the properties within this school

district or do you tax properties outside this school district? |

A

We are not allowed to tax property outside the

immediate Mansfield School.

Q

So, your taxing power is limited to the area within

your school district?

A

Q

Yes,

As Superintendent of the Mansfield Schools your

authority is limited to the Mansfield School District, 1s that

right, sir?

A

Q

That is right.

And you have no authority over any child outside of

that district?

A

Q

0o
hE

That is right.

And any child that you transfer out of that district,

|
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the state sends the money with him?

A T™at 1s right.

Q And any child that is transferred into your school
district from any other school district, the state takes the
money out of the district from whence he came and transfers it
to your district as a recelving district, is that right?

A That is right.

Q Yés, sir. And all in all, you receive some hundred-
odd children from districts outside your school district?

A Receive a hundred or more, yes, sir, we recelve more

than a hundred.

Q More than & hundred.,  How many of those children are

negro children?

A Some twelve or fifteen of them.

Q Some twelve or fifteen of them?

A T haven't counted them; I have the records of them.
Q And they all go t)the‘elementary schools?

A That is right.

Q How many of those chilldren are white children?

A Now, in our former question you asked me about the

high school?
Q Yes, sir. I am talking now about the high school

and this hundred or more of the children that go to high school,

is that right?

A That is right.

N9
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Q And are they white children?

A That is right.

Q None of them are colored children?

A That is right.

Q Yes, sir. Now, is it true, Mr. Huffman, that it is

a duty imposed on a school district by the State of Texas to

provide schooling facillities for the children within the district?

A By law, by dual purpose school system, yes.

Q Yes. So, there is a duty on Mansfield Independent
Schoél District to provide schools for the children within the
district?

A Up to where they are set aside and recommended by
the - - for classification by county boards and state officials,
yes.

Q You are going to have to explain that a liftle blt,
Mr. Huffman, that is a 1ittle too technical.

A In some school districts in our county are classified
as six grade schools and some are classified as twelve grade
schools. We have two schools #n our system. One is classifled
by the Texas Education Agency as an elight grade school and the
other is classified as a twelve grade school,

Q What is your elight grade school?

A It is our colored school,
Q You have what you call a colored school?
A Yes, sir.

m -
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Q And that is an eight grade school. And you have
another school that is your twelve grade school?

A That is right.

Q What do you call that?

A That is the white,

Q Your white school?

A So classified by the Texas Education Agency.

Q Yes, sir. So that whether a student transfers out
of there, as far as you are concerned, if he lives in your
school district it is your duty to provide education for him,
is that right?

A That 1s right.

Q Yes, sir. Now, you testified that the Moody children
had requested a transfer from your school district to the Fort
Worth School District.

Do you know when that transfer was up, redquest for
transfer‘was made ?

A I do not know the date, it was in early spring.

Q It was in the early spring. Do you think it was in
February?

1 It was prior to June lst, that application must be
made on or before.

Q June 1st?

A June 1st.

Q Yes, sir. All right, sir. These hundred-odd children,

_;
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high school children, white, whom you bring in from outside
your school district, they are chlldren whom you teach on a
contract basis, is that right? That 1s to say, you agree with
their school districts to teach them and get the money for
them, is that right?

A We agree to take transfer students.

Q Yes, sir. So far as the children within your school
district, now, we are talking only in terms of children within
the school district, you do provide transportation for them 1f
they live more than two miles from the school, is that right?

A That is right.

Q That is right. And, of course, a child living in
that two mile area, if he wished to stay and play basketball
in the afternoon he would walk home, normally, wouldn't he?

A Yes, or beyond it, elther.

Q Or beyond it, either. In other words, you provide
the transportation once in the morning and once in the after-
noon and that is all, but there is no child who lives within
the Mansfield Independent Schcol District who lives more than
eight miles from school, is that correct?

A Not over ten.

Q Not over ten. Yes, sir.

Now, I believe you testified that it 1s your feeling

that when conditions are such as to Jjustify your board will
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abide by the mandate of the Supreme Court., What conditions
are there that must be met before this will be Justified?

A Well, I believe we discussed that in our earlier
guestioning. I just say you would have those same conditions.

Q It is an educational program?

A An educational process, 1t must be entered upon and
brought to the enlightenment of the people there involved.

Q Yes, sir. How long do you think 1t is going to take.
you to complete this education?

A That I wouldn't know,

Q You don't know, but you are pretty sure when you
complete it your board will abide the Court's decision?

A Abide by the law and the requests.

Q Yes, sir., I belleve you'said that you are disposed
to abide by the will of the people in your community. Are you
saying there that you will not take any action until in your
opinton a majority of the people in your community want 167

A I don't remember saying that.

Q No, sir, I didn't say yoﬁ said that, I am sorry.

I am asking you, when you say that you will abide by the will
of the people, are you suggesting that you will abide by the
will of the people and integrate your schools when you are

certain that a majority of the people want 1t?

A T still do not recall saying we would abide by the |

|

will of the people only if they asked for these certain things |
|

97 |



T4

that have been brought out in the court, these requests,

Q Yes, sir. I am talking now about desegregating your

schools. Counsel asked you, I believe, if you were willing to

|

listen to the people in your community on this question, and I

think you sald you were, Right?

A That is right.

Q All right, all I am trying to find out from you is,
how many people have you got to have who are willing to de-
segregate before you will think 1t is efficacious to do so?

A T wouldn't have an answer %o that. I think the
school board would be willing, under the conditions that have
already been set up, that when the laws are brought forth for
that and then to work out these conditions.

Q But right now your school board is not willing?

A That is right.

|

Q Yes, sir. I belleve thet the last question that you

answered for counsel was to the éffect that we hope to work
out some means by which these problems can be handled in due

process of time.

How long do you think that 1s going to take?

A Well, I couldn't give you a definite answer on that.

As T have stated, in my earlier testimony, this has been a

process of over a period of years, hundreds of years, Oor more,

and for me to give you an exact number of days, or months, I

couldn't do that.

08
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By a traditlon that has been embedded in the minds of

the public for a hundred years?

A

Q

It will take some time.

It will take some time.

To iron it away.

MR, TATE: Yes, sir. Thank you very kindly.
MR, GOOCH: ©No further questions.

THE COURT: Call your next witness.

MR, TATE: Mr. Ira Gibson, please.

* ¥ %

IRA GIBSON,

a witness produced on behalf of the plaintiffs, beling first

duly sworn, testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. TATE:
Q State your name, sir?
A Ira Gibson.
Q Where do you live, Mr, Gibson?
A Mansfield, Texas.
Q Mansfield., Do you hole any office in Mansfield

with respect to the operation of the public schools in the

Mansfield Independent School District?

A

Q

29

I am Secretary of the School Board.

You are Secretary,and you are a member of the school
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board, as well?

A That is right.

Q Yes, sir. You have been sworn here today, have you?

A Yes, sir.

Q Yes, sir, Did you recelve a subpoena to come here
today?

A I did.

Q And did that subpoena say you were to testify on
behalf of the plaintiffs?

A It said I was to testify.

Q Yes, sir, yes, sir. Now, Mr, Gibson, I belleve you
heard Mr, Huffman testify here that a special committee of the
Mansfield Schools had been sent out to study the problem of
segregation., Do you agree with him on that?

A That is right.

And were you one of the members of that committee?

Q

A No, I was not.

Q You were not a member of that committee?

& No, I was not a member of the group that went out that
eﬁening.

Q No.

A Walt a minute. Are you télking about that went out
and talked to the people, or of the committee to study segrega-

tion?

Q The committee to study segregation.
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A That is right, I am.

Q You are a member of that committee?
A I an.
Q Do you recall, sir, when that committee was appointed?

A& I believe the records, I believe it was July, I don't
recall the date. It 1s a matter of record.

Q Yes, sir. Since the committee has been appointed how
many times has it met?

A Officially we have met at each meeting, and of course,
in a small town you probably meet two or three times a day, if
you happen to meet on the street, and working on a problem like
this, a meeting can be held most any time; of course, I wouldn't
say they were official, but they were meetings.

Q Yes, sir. But officially, how many meetings have
you held?

A Well, each board meeting night.

Q In other words, you just met along with the board?

h=3

That is right.

But, as a special committee, you have not met?

= O

That is right,lnot officially.
Q Not officially., Have you met unofficlally?
A Sure, we have met a lot of times and tried to work
out our problem, but not as a called meeting or officilal meeting.

Q You meet him on the corner and talk with him a little

while?

19
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About the - -
About how many such meetings have you had, Mr. Gibson%
I couldn't tell you the number of them, though.
Yes, sir. Do you recall what you talked about?

Well, it is always the problem of how to do it.

O 2 O = O =

Yes, sir.

A What is the best way to do it. And varlous people
we talked to about 1t, both white and colored; any articles
that we have read; any newspaper publicity we have had on it;

anything we think might help to try to solve our problem, those

are the things we discﬁss.
Q Yes, sir.

A And we will discuss it with anyone who is interested‘

in discussing it, regardless of race, creed or color., |
i
Q Yes, sir. Did your commlttee ever decide pretty

clearly what it was 1t was trying to settle?

A T don't know whether anyone has done that or not.
I have never been able to find any NACP publicity or anything
that gives us any idea of how to do it, or what they want, or
how to try to get it done. Of course, our problem 1is to try |

\
to get the schools desegregated with a minimum of hard feelings,

|

or with a minimum of frictlon.

Q Yes, sir.

A And so on and so forth, in our committee's mind.

Q You don't want to hurt anybody's feelings?
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A That is exactly right, we don't feel it would be fair
to elther the colored or the white students if the colored
students didn't want to come and the white students weren't any|
more anxious to have them than they were to come there,

Q In other words, 1t is your position that so long as
the majority of the white children do not want any of the negro
children to come to the Mansfield High School that you ought to
keep them separated, is that right?

A I wouldn't say majority, or any particular figures,
but I think there should be some time elapse where everyone has
a chance to think it over and try to work it out. I feel we
haven't had time for the people of the community to become
accustomed to the idea. We are working on that, but it isn't
easy.

Q Yes, sir, that is right.

A That is, to both races.

Q Yes, sir,

A I mean, it isn't only in the white race.

Q Yes, sir.

A We have objections from both races.

Q Yes, sir. So, basically, whatever you have thought

of so far has been in terms of the acceptance of the general

public, is that right?
A Well, of course, we are complying with the law in 1%,

and as the Supreme Court decislon says when practicable, we are

10"
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more than anxious to comply with all laws.

Q. Yes, sir, but you want to do that in such a way as
not to hurt anybody's feelings?

A Of course, there are going to be some people hurt,
regardless of what you do, but I mean the minimum,

Q With the minimum hurt, yes, sir.

Now, with all of this in mind, what, specifically,
has your board done to date towards complying with the Court's
decision?

A We haven't done anything - -

Q You haven't done anything?

A - - sgpecific,

Q Yes, sir., You say that this is to be an educational
problem. Has your board done anything overtly to undertake a
program of public education on thls question?

A I think every member on the board has tried to

educate everyone that has discussed 1t wlth them, that it is

the law, that we must comply with it, and that is the educational

program that I think that we have tried to get over to the
people, that we want to do 1t as soon as we possibly can.

Q Yes, sir. But whatever you have done has been by the

Individual action and not by any authorized action of your board?

A I beg your pardon?
Q Whatever has been done has been done by your board

members as individuals, the board has itself not taken any

10%
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formal action on this matter?

A No.
MR, TATE: Yes, sir. I think that is all, sir.

THE COURT: We will recess until 2:;00 o'clock.

(Noon recess.)

THE COURT: If you gentlemen are ready to proceed,
or T will give you until 2:00 o'clock to get ready.

MR. GOOCH: I would just as soon proceed.

MR, TATE: We will too.

THE COURT: All right, proceed.

* ¥ *®

CROSS EXAMINATION
BY MR, GOOCH:
Q Mr. Gibson, I believe you were on the stand before
the noon recess was taken., I belleve you testified that you

are at the present time the Secretary of the Mansfield School

Board?
A That is right.
Q What do you do for a living?
A I have a grocery store.
Q In Mansfield? ‘
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A Yes, sir.

Q How large é town is Mansfield, Texas?

A Oh, around twelve hundred, a thousand to twelve
hundred,

Q And how long have you lived in the Mansfield
community?

A Well, I have - - all my life, I have worked in town
some, but I have 5een there ever since I came back from the
army in 194%,

Q In 1944, Did you live there before you went?

A Oh, yes.

Q You have lived in Mansfield practically all your

A Practically all my life.
Q May I inquire as to what age man you are?

A 46,

Q Mr., 0. C. Rawdon is listed as President of the Board

of Trustees, do you know Mr, Rawdon?

A Oh, yes.

Q What does he do?

A He is a farmer,

Q Billy Arbor is listed as a member of the board, what
does he do?

A He has an electrical shop, and appliances and so on

and so forth.
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Q In the Mansfield community.

Hubert Beard, what does he do?

A He works for Consolidated, Convair.

Q Horace Howard? 1
A He works for Armour & Company.

Q J. R, Lewis?

A . Farmer,

Q 0, M. Wilshire?

A A farmgr.

Q Now, in connection with the committee that was

appointed, I believe back in July and August, as a committee

i
to study the question of segregatlon, am I correct that was you;

Mr. Wilshire and Mr, Huffman?
\

A That is right.

Q Now, Mansfield, not being, as you say, a metropolitan3
area, is it or not comparatively simple for the three members
to get together and discuss matters at odd times?

A Yes, we are together quite often.

Q What 1s the purpose of you being together quite

often?

A To discuss our school problems, segregation being

the major one.
Q Were you on the school board in May of 1954?
A Yes, sir.

Q Do you recall that that is the year in which the
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Supreme Court entered its first decision relative to
segregation? At that time did you have explained to you the
legal implications involved in the Supreme Court's rulings?

A Yes, sir, '

Q And in that decision - - I don't want to lead the
witness, and I will stop, but I believe I am quoting the
decision correctly - - that it retained Jjurisdiction for a
further determination in the matter - - were you familiar with
that part of the decision?

A (Witness nods head).

Q And then the decision on May 31, 1955, were you
advised of that decislon by the Supreme Court?

A Yes, sir.

Q And did you recelive a copy of that opinion?

A _ Yes, sir.

Q And did you and the board read and digest the opinion
of the Court in that instance?

A Many times.

Q And in connection with that decision what other things
have you done, or attempted to do, if any?

A Well, we have discussed it with civic organizations,
we have discussed it with other school people, other school
superintendents, we discussed - - we read any printed matter
we could find, both newspapers and magazines, or anything any

board member could find, or clippings, or anything of value that



85
might help us, it was brought to the committee for study and
digested and we discussed it with the people of the community,
bdth white and colored, got thelr opinions on the matters, as
to how wquld be the best way they thought it might be handled;
also discussed it with the students of both schools, both white
and colored, to find out what thelr reactions were to 1it.

In other words, our Jjob as trustees are more or less
to get the opinion of the people and try to operate our school
accordingly. I mean, it is llatson: work, that is, it 1s the
duty of the board of trustees.

Q You, of course, realize the laws as pronounced by
the Supreme::Court of the United States are to be followed, and‘
you have no disposition, I presume, to go contrary to the law? |

A No, sir.

Q And it is, as I take it from you, a matter of arriving
at the best possible solution to a speedy acceptance of the
Court's ruling, and do the best you can under the circumstances?

A That 1s right. We have tried to do the best we could
until some decision could be reached; we have made evefy effort
to give the colored students, as well as the white, the best
education possible. These are the people we are interested in,
are the students.,

Q Now, I believe in connection with the - -

May I come to the witness, Your Honor?

THE COURT: Yes,
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Q (By Mr. Gooch) The testimony was that on July 26th
you received a petition from Mr. Moody and others with respect
to segregation in the Mansfield Independent School District -
and for reference I hand you - - walt a minute, is this the
book in which the official minutes of the Mansfield Independeht
School District are kept?

A That is it.

Q And do you keep‘theSe books and attest the actions
of the Board of Trustees?

A That is right.

Q I refer to the minutes of the meeting of July 26,
1955, which appear to have been signed by the Secretary of the
Board, Ira Gibson, and the President of the Board, Mr. Rawdon,
am I correct?

A That is right.

Q These minutes accurately reflect what went on and
what action was taken by the board in that meeting?

A Yes, sir.

Q Will you read into the record the minutes of the
neeting of the board of trustees of July 26, 19557

A "At a regular meeting of the Board of Education of
the Mansfield Independent School District, the following
members present: O. C. Rawdon, presldent; Ira Gibson, secretary;

Hubert Beard, J. R, Lewis, O, M. Wilshire and R. L. Huffman,

superintendent.
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"Prayer was offered by J. R. Lewis. Minutes of the
previous meeting were read and approved.

"Motion made by Hubert Beard and seconded by O, M.
Wilshire to purchase Mrs. Egan's studio at a cost of $350.00.
Motion carried.

"A petition received from T. M. Moody and others
wherein request was made to take immedlate steps to end
segregation in the Mansfield Public School wés presented to
the board.

"After a lengthy discussion and much consideration
as to the problems that would be encountered at this time due
to such a short notice in making the echange from a dual school
system to & single school system, Ira Gibson made motion that
further study be made by the board and administration of éhe
school in regard to the request of the petition and that
segregation be continued throughout the entire school season |
duriling the 1955-56 school term. Also a letder be sent to T. MT
Moody in answer to his desegregation for the coming school
term. Motion seconded by J. R. Lewis., Motlon carried unani-
mously.

"A committee was appointed by President Rawdén,
consisting of Superintendent R, L., Huffman, O. M, Wilshire and!

Ira Gibson to make further study in regard to segregation

problems, ;

"Motion made by O, M. Wilshire and seconded by Hubert

H k ] ‘
|
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Beard to put a bus on for colored students from Mansfield to
Fort Worth for high school students, this bus to be operated
only in case such is deemed Jjustifiable, after a survey has
been made, and this to be determined by eligible students that
are available to ride buses. Motion carried.
"Motion made by Ira Gibson and seconded by J. R.
Lewis to accept the resignation of Mrs. Nella Ryan, Mr. Hubert
Mahaney and Mrs, Marie Slaver, Motion carried.
"Motion made by Ira Gibson and seconded by 0. M, |
Wilshire to employ the following white teachers for the school‘
term 1955-56."
Q That is immaterial, That 1s the part I wanted you
to read there.
MR, TATE: Would you mind if I see the rest of it?
MR, GOOCH: I don't mind at all.
Q (By Mr. Gooch) Go ahead and read it all then.
MR. TATE: You need not bother, I just wanted to
see 1t.
MR. GOOCH: We will put it all in and then it will
be a completed Instrument.
A Where did I - -
"Mprs., Edna Tracy, Venus, Texas; Mr, Thomas McDonald,
Lewisville, Arkansas; Mrs, Teresa Allen, Houston, Texas; Mr,
Raymond V. Young, Mr. Bert Fischler, Mr., Lavon R. Means and

Mrs. Ruth Schley, all of Fort Worth, Texas, Motlon carrled.
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"Motion made by Ira Gibson and seconded by J. R.
Lewis to employ Willie E. Brown, Dallas, Texas, as teacher in
the colored school for school term 1955-56, Motion carried.
"There being no further business the board adjourned{
"Ira Gibson, Secretary of the Board.
"o. ¢, Rawdon, President of the Board."
Q (By Mr. Gooch) I find next in the book the minutes ?
of a purported meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Mansfield
Independent School District, date August 22, 1955. Is that th%

next record Qf a special or regular meeting of the Board of

Trustees of Mansfleld? |
A Yes, sir. _ }
Q Would you read, please, the minuteés of the meeting
of August 22, 19557
A "August 22, 1955, Mansfield, Texas.
“at a called meeting of the Board of Education of the
Mansfield Independent School District, the following members |

were present: O. C. Rawdon, President; Ira Gibson, Secretary; |

Hubert Beard, Billy Arbor, Jr., Louls Horace Howard, O. M.
Wilshire and R, L. Huffman, Superintendent,

"Meeting was called to order by the president and
prayer was offered by Horace Howard.

"pn lengthy discussion was held in regard to the
segregation question and the best possible thing that might

and could be worked out in the future in regard to the questiﬁn.
i
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"Motion was made by Hubert Beard and seconded by J.
R. Lewis to buy gas and oil from W. L., Johnston for the school
year 1955-56, Motlon carried.

"Motion made by Ira Gibson and seconded by Hubert
Beard to accept the county school calendar as our calendar for
the school year, in so far as 1t fits our needs in regard to
the rural schools, our bus service. Motion carried.

"There being no further business the board adjourned.”

Signed "Ira Gibson, Secretary of the Board, 0. C.
Rawdon, President".

Q Does that accurately and correctly reflect business
that transpired at that meeting?

A It does.

Q I refer you now to the next succeeding, apparently
the next succeeding board meeting, which 1s labeled September
27, 1955, Does that follow your July and August meetings?

A Yes, sir. |

Q Will you read, please, the minutes of the meeting of

September 27, 1955%
A "September 27, 1955, Mansfield, Texas.

"At a regular meeting of the Board of Education the
following members were present: O. C. Rawdon, President; Ira
Gibson, Secretary; Hubert Beard, Billy Arbor, Jr., Louis Horace
Howard, O. M. Wilshere and Superintendent R, L. Huffman.

"prayer was offered by Horace Howard.

-
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"Since this is the first meeting of the school board
since the beginning of school nothing in the way of official
business was presented tp the board.

"s report as to the very fine way school had opened
and was making progress was given to the board by Superintendent
Huffman., In his statements the board was advised that all
previous high school enrollments had been broken with an enroll-
ment of 285 high school students.

"A report from the segregation committee composed of
Superintendent R, L. Huffman, O, M. Wilshire and Ira Gibson
was glven to the board in regard to their study and findings.

"The recent negro bus added and the colored students
riding same to Fort Worth wasn‘found to be highly accepted by
all students and parents. Lawyer Stroud, colored bus driver,
reported that one hundred per cent of the eligible students
rode the bus most every day. Seldom ever a student missed
catching the bus.

"There being no further business the board adjourned.

"Ira Gibson, Secretary of the Board, O. C. Rawdon,
President of the Board,"

Q Do those minutes accurately reflect the matters that
transpired at the meeting on September 27, 19557

A Yes, sir.

Q Then your next meeting appears to have been one on

October 8, 1955, in response to this lawsuit, is that correct?

v g =
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A Yes, sir.
Q You might read that one, for a complete plcture.
A "October 8, 1955, Mansfield, Texas.

"pr a called meeting of the Board of Education of
Mansfield Independent School District the following members
were present: 0. C. Rawdon, President; Ira Glbson, Secretary;
Billy Arbor, Hubert Beard, J. R. Lewls, O. M, Wilshire, and
Superintendent R. L. Huffman.,

"Meeting called for the purpose of discussing and
seeing what steps might be and should be taken in regard %o
the headlines of Saturday Morning, October 8, 1955, Star-
Telegram, wherein public announcement was made that the
Mansfield School Board Superintendent and District had been
sued by three negro students who had earlier in the year sought
enrollment in,the Mansfield High School but were denied
enrollment due to the fact that they were negro students.

"Motion made by Ira Gibson and seconded by 0. M,
Wilshire to seek advice in regard to suit as headlined in
morning paper. Board also authorized Superintendent R. L.
Huffman and Hubert Beard as board representatives to contact
an attorney-at-law and seek his advice, and 1f deemed necessary,
to employ sald attorney to represent the school in the lawsult,

Motion carried unanimously.

"mhere being no further business, the board

ad journed.

o
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"Ira Gibson, Secretary, O. C. Rawdon, President.”
Q Has there bheen any official meetinf of the board
gince that time?
A Well, let's see? October, November, No, no., ILet's

see? Wait a minute.

Q All right. Do you find any meeting, however, that is

had? I just wanted it if there was any more.
Now, Mr., Gibson, as Secretary of the Board, and a

member of the Board of Education, and as a resldent of the .
Mansfield community, I wlll ask you to state whether or not
you believe there is a reasonable probability, if given time
you will be éble to work out this matter so that there wlll not
be too much conflict in connection with this problem?

|
r
|
\

A Yes, I think we would be able to work out within a
reasonable time; it is rather hard for us to be the first one
in this entire area, it has caused quite a lot of - - 1t has |
caugsed - - well, it has caused dissatisfaction in the communitﬁ,
by being sued, by having this brought on as it is. I think
within a reasonable length of time we can work it out., Of
course, I think this has made it much harder by having this
lawsuit because of the sentiment of a lot of the people in the

community, both colored and white. '

MR, GOOCH: Pass the witness.

* % ¥
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REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. TATE:

Q Mr., Gibson, you say that some time in the summer of
1954 after the ruling of the Supreme Court you sought advice
with respect to the meaning of the Court's declsion, the
Supreme Court's decision in 1954,

From whom did you seek that advice?

A I don't recall saying that I sought advice.

Q Mr. Clerk - -

A The question was asked, was 1t explained to us and
I said that 1t was.

Q I see., Who explained it to you?

A Well, it was explained, 1t was discussed at the
board meetings, and the superintendent and varlious ones, 1t
was discussed, and not necessarily sought advice on 1t, we
studied the Supreme Court action.

Q And I believe you sald you read it several times?

A The Court's action on both of them; I have read the
one in '55 more than I have read the one in '54%,

Q But you and your entire board made yourselves
familiar with the decision of the Court of May 17, 19547

A Well, it was - - we read it, yes.

Q And what did you understand it to say?

A That the Supreme Court had ruled that 1t would give

1R
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a2 decision later on the following year,

Q You Jjust understood that the Court had decided it
would give a decision later oh with respect to what question?

A Desegregation,

Q Yes, sir. Now, you say that you discussed the 1955
decision, With whom did you discuss that?

A It was discussed in board meetings.

Q And you said you have read that several times?

A Yes, I have read it.

Q And what 1s your understanding now of the meaning of
that decision?

A That it 1s the duty of the Board of Education to make
every effort to bring abouf desegregation and it should come
when practical.

Q When'practical, yves, sir. And - - well, that is all
right, sir.

I believe you said that this committee appointed on
August 27th has been out seeking public opinion, is that right?|

A Yes, that is right.

Q And that you intend to operate your schools according
to the findings that you get from this public opinion, is that
right?

A In helping operate the school,

Q Yes.

A That is the way the school board should operate,
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Q ‘ Yes, sir. ©So, you are going to carry on your school
in keeping with the body of opinion in your community, is thatT
right? |

A No, we are?going to earry on our school according to |
law,

Q Yes, sir, yes, sir. You said that you thought if

you had enough time you could work thilis thing out for the best

interests of all. What did you understand to be the best

interests of all?

A Well, less dissatisfaction in the community, where

everyone would be more happy about it.

Q About what?

A About integration. |

Q Sir? !

A About integration, |

Q Yes, sir. Now, you say that your committee came in '
and reported to the school board on September 27th, and your X
committee reported that the bus was running regularly to Fort |
Worth, and that it was pretty well carrying 1its capaclity, 1s |
that right?

A It was carrylng all the students that wanted to go. [

Q That is right. Now, was that the full report of your
committee? |

A Well, that was the main thing that we reported,

Q Yes, sir.

% €):
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A That they were all happy with the bus and that they
were all attending school regularly,
Q So, in your study from August 27th, when you were
appointed, to September 27th, when you made your report, the
only thing that you had to report to your board was that the

bus was running regularly and carrylng all of the negro studenté,

is that all, sir?

A Well, there was discussion held in the board meeting
as to éegregation, of course.

Q Do you recall what was said? {

A There has been a lot of words sald in board meetings‘
over the last year,

Q Yes, sir, Now, what is the status of your committee
now on segregation. Do you feel that your committee has dis-
charged its duty?

A No, it 1s still in operation.

Q And what else do you have in mind to do?

A We are going to try to desegregate as soon as we {
think that it is practicable at all,

Q Yes, sir. Now, you said "practical, what do you |
mean by that?

A I think that was explained when I sald with the
least tension, or the least - =~

Q In other words, you are golng to segregate when the Z
|
l

tension or the reaction of your community to desegregation will

|
\
\
!
|

|
|
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be neutralized, is that right?

A As much as possible.

Q Yes, sir,

A Of course, you cannot always say it will be completely
neutralized, but as soon as we think it is practicable.

Q How long do you think i1t 1s going to take you to k
" reach that point?
A Well, as I, as one board member, could not answer a
question like that. *
Q Don't you have any information about it? '
A We have asked for an extension of this year. |
Q Yes, sir. i
A Now, I couldn't answer when we, for our board of
seven men,
Q Yes, sir. Has your board made any decision at all

what it is going to do about the 56957 year?

A No,
Q You don't have any plan for that one?
A We are working on the present right at the present,

we have had - -

Q I mean, you don't have any plan beyond what you have
already - -
A No.

it is your opinion that if your board is given reasonable time

. .,‘q()
B WAL

|

|
Q Yes, sir. Then, I belleve that you testified that

|

[
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that you can do this without too much complication?

A I think that is true. |

Q I still would like to know what you meant there by
"reasonable time"? How much do you think would be a reasonable
time?

A Well, 1t is hard to tell what reasonable time is, when
you don't know exactly what is going on in the future.

Q Yes, sir.

A That would have to be determined by what happens.

Q So, at this moment you don't have any notion when you
might begin to desegregate?

A I couldn't say, no, sir, I couldn't say.

Q Yes, sir. I believe you said you talked with some
other school officials, that 1is, school district heads and so
on, is that true?

A That is right.

Q What school districts did you talk with?

A I talked with the Superintendent of Everman School.

Q Yes, sir. Did you talk with the Superintendent of
the Austin School?

A No, sir.

Q Did you talk with the Superintendent of the San
Antonio School?

A No, sir.

@ Did you talk with the Superintendent of the El Paso |

123
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a witness produced on behalf of the plaintiffs, being first

No.

Corpus Chrisii?

No.

MR, TATE: Yes, sir., I think that is all, sir.

MR, GOOCH: That is all.

* K *

0. M., WILSHIRE,

duly sworn, testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR, TATE:

A

Q
District?

A

Q
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Will you please tell the Court your name, please, sin?

0. M, Wilshire.
Where do you live, Mr, Wilshire?

Alvarado, Route 3.

Is that within the Mansfield Independent School

It 1s.

Are you a member of the School Board of the Mansfield

Independent School District?

A

Q

124

I am.

How long have you been a board member?

I went in in '54,
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Yes, sir. Mr. Wilshire, there has been some testimony

here that you have heard with respect to a commlttee on segrega¥

tion that was appointed by the board on or about August 27, 1085,

O

oo

b O B O

= O

Q

Are you a member‘of that board?

I am.

When vou were appointed what were you told to do?
Study the problem,

Study the problem?

Yes, sir.

Was there any particular thing that you were to study?
Segregation.

You were to study segregation?

Yes, sir.

It was your problem. All right, sir, how many times

has your board met?

A

Q

A
Q
A

Q

Officially?

Yes, sir.

It has not met officially.
It has not met at all?

No, sir.

So, officially, your committee has done nothing

towards studying segregation?

A

No, sir, we have done something, we studled the

problem of segregation.

Q

1HhE

A b R

A1l right, sir, how much study have you given to the



question?

A' A whole lot.

Q Of segregation?

A That is right.

Q Have you reached any conclusions with respect to
segregation?

A No, sir.

You have reached no conclusions?

Q

A No, sir.
Q Have you run into any problems?
A

We have.

Q What are your problems?
A Dissatisfaction among the community.
Q Dissatisfaction among the community.

When you say "qissatisfaction among the community",

what is the community dissatisfled about?

A Well, they are not satisfled with segregation and
.are not ready to enter into it right at the present time,

Q They are not satisfied with desegregation and they
are not ready to enter into it at this time?

A That is right.

Q Yes, sir. And have you reported that to the board?

A We have,

Q And what did the board do about 1t?

A

Not anything, I don't suppose.
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people, one of the board members and members of this segregation
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Nothing, I see. Mr, Wilshire, were you one of the

committee who went out and talked with some of the negro

parents?
A

Q

I was.

211 right, sir, when you went out to see them what

did you say?

A

L

g
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what they

O >
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Q

We asked them if they wanted to enroll in school.
S8ir?

We asked them if they were going to school.
Where ?

The students?

Yes, sir.

Anywhere.

What else did you ask them?

|
|
|
|

1

i

If they would be willing to ride the bus, if that is|

wanted.

Sir?

If that is what they wanted.

If they would be willing to ride the bus?
Yes, sir.

What bus are you talking about?

The one going to Fort Worth.

In other words, you were asking them 1f tThey were

willing to come to school in Fort Worth?

J
L)
-

|
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A Yes, sir.
Q What else did you ask them?

A That is practically all.

Q In other words, you went and saw them and asked them}
|

"Are you going to school this fall?" And if they said, "Yes",

you asked them if they were willing to go to Fort Worth, is ;
that what you asked them?
A We asked them if they were willing to ride the bus. j
Q If they were Willing to ride the bus. Did you ask
them anything about their desires, the parents, did you ask
- them anything about thelr desire to send thelr children to
school in Mansfield, the high school students, chlldren?

A Yes, sir,

Q What did you ask them?

A Asked them which school they preferred.

Q Between - - when you say between what schools you ‘
referr. .~ -

| A Fort Worth and Mansfield. | !

You asked them what school they preferred? E

|

\

Q

A Yes, sir.

Q And if they were willing to send them to Fort Worth?f
A Yes, sir, ;
Q As a member of the board, Mr, Wilshire, what plan,

if any, does your board have for conforming to the two

decisions of the Supreme Court of the United States. Are you

1 )
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familiar with those two decisions?

A Yes, sir.

105 |

Q What plan does your board have of conforming to the

mandates of those two decisions?
B I believe if we were given sufficlent time we cou
work the problem out.
Q At the present time you have no plan?
A No, sir.
MR, TATE: I think that is all, sir, thank you.
MR, GOOCH: No questions,
MR, TATE: We have Jjust two more witnesses, Your
Honor, ﬁery briefly.
Mrs.Moody, please,

This will be wvery short, sir.

* * %

JIMMIE MOODY,
a witness produced on behalf of the plaintiffs, being first
duly sworn, testified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. TATE:
Q Please tell the Court your name?
A Jimmie Moody.
Q Jimmie Moody. Where do you live?

A Mansfield.

1S
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That is Mansfield, Texas?
U:h‘huh ®

Is that within the Mansfileld Independent School

Uh-huh ®

Do you have a chlld going to high school?

| Yes, I do.

What is that child's name?
Charles Moody.

Where does he go to high school?

106 |

Of course, he goes to Guinn, but, you know, they Jjust

teach to eighth grade down there.

Q

I see. You have one going to high school?

That is the one.

I see, And where is he going to high school now?
James E. Guinn, over here on Rosedale.

That is in Fort Worth?

Uh-huh.

I see, Mrs. Moody, how does it happen that that

that your boy is going to school in Fort Worth?

A

|

Well, they don't have - - they don't teach the ninth

grade down there in our school.

Q

A

Q

D
By

0

You say "our" school, you mean the school for negroes?

Yes, uh-huh.

But there is a high school at Mansfield?
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A Oh, yes, sir.
Q Did you make any effort to get your boy in the school
at Mansfield?

A Oh, yes.

Q You did? White?

A Yes.

Q What did they tell you?

A Well, Mr. Huffman turned him down.

Q When you say "turned him down", what do you mean by

that?
A He asked me was I willing for my child to go to school
up here, or else down there, and so, I told him, I said, "No",
T said, "I am willing for my child to go to school in Mansfield."
Q@  What else did he ask you?
A - Well, he aske’ me, he said, "Mostly all the rest of
the colored had signed) you know, for the children to go back
and forth, but I told him I wasn't willing for mine.
Q I see. Now, was that said to you at the time your

child went over to school, or was that at some later date?

A It was at a later date.

Q And where did this take place?

A In Mr. Gibson's store.

Q In Mr. Gilbson's store?

A Uh-huh,

Q Did you go there to see Mr., Huffman?

9 ‘1
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No, sir,

How did it happen you ran into him?

Well, I happened to be in hils store and he called me,

He just asked you whether or not you were willihg?

Was willing.

To let your child go to Fort Worth?
To Fort Worth, uh-huh.

And you told him that you were?

I told him "No".

But this child is now coming?
Uh-huh.

And that is because you had no place
That 1s right.

MR. TATE: That is all, thank you.
MR . GOOCH§ No queétions.

MR, TATE: Mr. J. A. Moody.

108

else to send him?
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J. A, MOODY,

a wltness produced on behalf of the plaintiffs, being first

duly sworn, testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. TATE:

Q

= O = O = O

= O

o 0 O = O o O

Will you please tell the Court your name?

J. A. Moody.

Where do you live, Mr. Moody?

Mansfield.

Mansfield, Texas. How long have you lived there?
Well, I have lived there all my life.

All your life.. Do you have a school age child?
Yes, sir.

Do you have a child going to high school?

I have got one.

What 1is that child's name?

Floyd Stephenson Moody.

And where is that child in school now?

Terrell.

Terrell. That is in Fort Worth? \
That is right.

How long has that child been going to Terrell?
This is his first year in Terrell.

Did Mr. Huffman come to see you, or talk to you about

|
|
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Yes.

Do you know roughly when it was?
Well, no, s8ir, I don't.
Was 1t before school opened?

It was before school opened,

Was it in August, or September, or when was it?

I believe it was in August.

And where were you when he talked to you?

At home,

He came in your home?

That is right.

Who was with him?

Mr. Rawdon and Mr. Wilshire.

All right. What, if ahything, did he say to you?

Well, he wanted to know if I was going to send him
I told him "Yes".

All right,what else did he say?

He said, "What do you think about the bus coming to

Fort Worth?"

Q

A

"and you were the last one, and we decided we would come around

and see what you thought about it."

<
Coheet
PN

I told him I didn't think about 1t.
What else did he say?

Well, he said he had been around to all the parents,
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Q Is that about all he said about 1t?

A That is about all,

Q Did you agree to send your child to Fort Worth?
A No, sir.

Q Why are you sending him to Fort Worth?

A Well, that is the only place he had to go.

Q That is the only place he had to go but you did not
ask that he be sent to Fort Worth?

A No, sir.

Q. It was not your will that he be sent to Fort Worth?

A That is right.

MR. TATE: That is all.

* ¥ %

CROSS EXAMINATION

BY MR, GOOCH:

Q Did you transfer your son to Fort Worth?

A No, I think my wife did; I didn't.

Q When do you recall it was? Prior to June of '55,
wasn't it?

A I don't know., To tell the truth about it I wasn't
there when she transferred him.

Q Where were you then?

A Well, I wouldn't know.

Q You mean you Jjust wasn't at home, or wasn't in

?ﬁ_ atd
G
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Mansfield?

A I just wasn't at home,

Q It was before Mr., Huffman came out and talked to you,
wasn't 1t?

A Yes, uh-huh. 1

Q You had already transferred him to the I. M. Terrell
School in Fort Worth?

A In '54,

Q No, I am talking about in '55. Or did you transfer —‘-
you said this was his first year in I. M, Terrell?

A That is right.

Q Somebody had to transfer him to come down here to

Terrell, didn't they?

A Yes, sir.
Q Do you know whether they transfer - -
A I don't know whether he was transferred this year or

not.

Q He had to be transferred, didn't you know that? Or
did you have anything to do with that?
A I didn't have a thing to do with 1it.
Q Did you leave that up to your wife?
A No, it was Jjust one of them things, I wasn't there.
MR. GOOCH: That is all, thank you.
MR. TATE: May it please the Court, I would Just

1ike to call Mr. Huffman back for one or two questlons, Just
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about two questions, and I will be through with him, |

THE COURT: Very well. '

* ¥ *

‘R. L. HUFFMAN,
being recalled on behalf of the plaintiffs, being heretofore
duly sworn, testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. TATE:

Q Mr, Huffman, in dealing with the problem of de-

segregation in Mansfleld, we have discussed the problem that
you would likely have, and I would like to ask you if, in your
opinion, there would be any problem in relation to desegregating

the schools at Mansfield that would not have arlsen, say, in

Austin?
A That would not have arisen in Austin?
Q Yes, sir.

A I don't believe I would be in position to answer thaﬁ,
I don't know thelr problems.

Q You testified here that you had a general knowledge
of schools here at Fort Worth.

Do you have a general knowledge of the schools in

Austin?
A Nothing more than on Jjust a state wide basis.
Q Yes, sir. Can you foresee any problem that would
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arise in Mansfield in relation to desegregation that would be ;
different from the problems that would arise in Corpus Christi?

A I don't suppose there would be, |
Q Nothing that would make 1t any more difficult. !

Do you foresee any difficulty you would face at

Mansfield than say San Antonio would not face? _ '
A I suppose the problems would be general pretty well 1
\

everywhere.

MR.TATE: Yes, sir, That is all, sir. |

* ¥ %

CROSS EXAMINATION
BY MR. GOOCH:

Q Mr, Huffman, do you know what the situation is in
Corpus Christi, or as to whether or not there are many or few
that are interested in this problem?

A I would only have to glve hearsay, and I could not
swear by that.

Q Do you know anything about the problems at San
Antonio from firéthand knowledge?

A Nothing only in my school meetings, what I have
Jjust heard over the grapevine route, |

Q The matters you have testified to, though, that \
confront Mansfield Independent School District you feel are

real problems in that locality, is that correct?

Loy Ul [
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Yes, sir,
MR, GOOCH: That is all.,
MR, TATE: May it please the Court, plaintiffs rest.

MR, GOOCH: I would like to call one srort witness,

Mr, David Sellers.

THE COURT: Proceed.
* ¥ ¥

DAVID SELLERS,

a witness produced on behalf of the defendantg,being first

duly sworn, testified as follows:

BY MR.

Q

DIRECT EXAMINATION

GOOCH:

State your name.
David Sellers.
Where do you live, Mr, Sellers?

I live in Richland Hills, which is a suburb of Fort

What 1s your means of livelihood?

I am the Assistant Superintendent of the Fort Worth

Public Schools, working in the Instructional Division.

Q

How long have you been connected with the Fort Worth

Public Schools?

A

Q

This is my 34th year.

Are you familiar with the curriculum and courses of

study in the Fort Worth Public High Schools?

|
\
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A Yes, sir.
Q Are you familiar with I. M, Terrell High School?

A Yes, sir.

Q Could you give us the number of courses of study, |
accredited courses of study that are in the I. M. Terrell High ?
School in Fort Worth? E

A We offer forty-five and a half units of academic
units and thirty-six units of vocational units, making a total
of eighty-one and a half units.

Q I believe the Mansfield School District is thirty-two

and a half,.

A I heard it this morning, but I have forgotten the

!
i

Q Now, you talk about the forty-five units of academlc;

exact figure.

does that take into account - - or, generally, what does that
take into account?

A That is all the subjects offered in the school sir.
Would you like for me to list them, sir?

Q Yes, sir, I believe.

A I have copied them off the record to be accurate.

Q All right.

A We offer four units of English, divided three units
in English ﬁroper and one unit in Journalism.

We offer three units in Social Studies.

One in World History.

+20 |



One in American History.

One in Civics,

We offer four units in mathematics. This consists of
two Alegebra, one in Plane Geometry, one-half in Trigonometry,
one-half in Solid Geometry.

We offer three units in Science; Biokogy, Chemistry
and Physics.

We offer five and a half units of Commercial Work:
Two units that consists of two units in typewriting, one unit
in shorthand; two units in Distributive Education; a half a
unit in Commercial Arithmetic.

| We offer three units in foreign languages, that is
three years of Spanish.

Five and a half units in music, made up of one unit
in Theory, one and a half units of training, one and a half
units for orchestra and one and a half units for band.

We offer three units in art,

We offer a total of éix units in home making, made
up of three in foods and three in clothing.

‘We offer six and a half units of Industrial Arts,
made up of one unit in Mechanical Drawing, three units in Wood
Work, two and a half units in Motor Work.

We offer one unit in Physical Education.

And we offer one unit in Bible History.

That is a total of forty-five and a half.
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Q All right,
Generally, what are the vocational courses?
A The vocational courses are made up of carpentry,
auto mechanlics, cosmetology, radio, television, that is, repair
work, leather craft and shoe repair, auto body and upholstery,
maching shop and welding. Those are all four and arhall units.
Q Yes,sir.
A Making a total of thirty-six units.
Q That is the total number of units when added together
that make up your eighty-one and a half?
A Eighty-one and a half, yes, sir.
MR, GOOCH: Your witmess.
MR. TATE: Pass the witness.

MR. GOOCH: Mr. Huffman, will you come back, please?

¥ * *

R, L. HUFFMAN,
being recalled on behalf of the defendants, being heretofore
duly sworn, testified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR, GOOCH:
MR. GOOCH: Excuse me Just a moment, Your Honor.
THE COURT: The court will be in recess for ten

minutes.

(Short recess).

S5 H
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Q (By Mr. Gooch) Mr. Huffman, you have been on the
stand before, have you not?

A | Yes, sir.

Q Do you have with you the credits and courses offered
by the Mansfield High School of the Mansfield Independent
School District?

A fes, sir.

Q Will you produce those, please, sir, and read them
into the record? And how many do you say there are?

A Thirty-two and a half, I believe.

Q All right, what are they, please, sir?

A English, four. Now, we offer credits in English.

Algebra, two courses in Algebra.
One credit in Plane Geometry.

Half a credit in Solid Geometry.
One-half credit in Trigonometry.
One credit in General Mathematics,
One credit in General Business.
One credilt in General Science.

One in Blology.

One credit in Chemistry.

One in Physics.

Four in Vocational Home Making.
Four credits in Vocational Agriculture.

One credit in FParm Engineering.

143
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One credit in World History.,
One credit in American History.
One-half credit in Civics.
One-half credit in Texas History.
Two credits in Typing.
One in Shorthand.
One in Bookkeeping.
Safety and Health Education, one.
Driver's Training, one-half.
And two credits in Speech.
MR, GOOCH: That is all.
With that the defendants complete thelr case,
Your Honor.
THE COURT: Anything further from the plaintiffs?

MR. TATE: No further testimony, sir.

* ¥ *

bk
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE UNITED STATES
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS
FORT WORTH DIVISION
NATHANIEL JACKSON, A MINOR, ET AL

VS. CIVIL ACTION NO
O. C. RAWDON, ET AL - R

Plaintiffs seek both a temporary and permanent
injunction against defendants who are the Board of Trustees and
the Superintendent of the Mansfield Independent School District
and the Mansfield Independent School District, a body corporate,
to enjoin and restrain defendants from denylng and refusing to
plaintiffs the right and privilege of attending the public high
school maintained by defendants within the boundaries of the
Mansfield Independent School District.

This case, filed October 7,'1955, came on for hearing
on the Tth day of November, 1955, on plalntiffs' application
for temporary injunction pursuant to setting: nade by the Courg
October 13, 1955. Plaintiffs in open court withdrew their plea
that a statutory three-judge court be convened pursuant to
Sections 2281 and 2284, Title 28, United States Code, to hear
the cause, and expressly requested that the case be heard and
determined now not only on the plea for temporary injunction,
but on the permanent injunction demanded in the action on the
merits as well, stating that the same evidence would be offered
on both hearings. Plaintiffs' request was granted by the Court.

The contentions of the parties were well pleaded,

and the evidence was heard fully.

y; »
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This is a suit in equity, on a mimeographed complaint,
brought as a class action by three negro mlnors and others
alleged as "so numerous as to make it impracticable to bring
all of them" into court, who reside in the Mansfield Independent
School District, a rural district at the edge of Fort Worth,
Texas. The employment of the device of a class suif here is
indiscriminate if not improper where only 12 colored high school
students are involved, which indicates that the other nine
negro students did not wilsh this actiqn at this time. Likewise
the failure of one of the three plaintiffs to appear in court and
testify ralses a question as to whether he wanted to change
schools now.

In finding the equities between the parties, I see on
the one hand, the situation of this rural school board composed
primarily of farmers, agents of the State of Texas (whose
segregation laws were not voilded by the State Supreme Court e
until the opinion of October 12 and mandate issued October 28,
1955, after the opening of school on September 2, 1955)
struggling with breaking the tradition of generations; openlng
their meetings with prayer for solution; studying articles in
magazines and papers; holding numerous meetings; passing
resolutions and appointing a committee to work on a plan for
integration - - making the start toward "obeying the law" which
their abilities dictated., Further, the trustees now assure

the Court that they are continuing their efforts and will work

T F
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out desegregation., Their committee conferred with these
plaintiffs in the presence of plaintiffs' parents, and accepted
and fulfilled the request made by plaintiffs with their attorney
in August, 1955 for certain administrative steps as a solution
for this period of transition, the school year 1955-56. These
administrative steps consisted of making arrangements for these
students to attend the I. M., Terrell School in the city of Fort
Worth; the application for and consummation of transfer of
-state allocated fundes to the Fort Worth Independent School
District; and the procuring of a special bus for transporting
these students to the Fort Worth School. After the accompishment
of these administrative steps taken at the request of plaintiffs,
and after school had been in session more than a month, this
action was filed. |

On the other hand, I find three plaintiffs, only two
of whom testify, high school students well into their year's
work at I. M. Terrell School in Fort Worth, by their own
testimony happy and well adjusted, taking vocational courses
not available at Mansfield High School, testifying that their
reason for wanting to transfer to Mansfield High School is the
inconvenience of early rising and late return home due to the
round trip of 36 to %0 miles daily. (Testimony showed that e
other students of this rural area also arise early and travel
considerable distances to and from school.) One of the

plaintiffs testified that if he participated in athletics after

b
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school, he would have to use public transportation or otherwise
furnish his own means of travel home after shcool. (Testimony
revealed that the same situation exists for Mansfield High
School students.) One plaintiff testified that he formerly
resided within the boundaries of the Fort Worth Independent
School District, attending school there until he moved into the
Mansfield Independent School District in August, 1955.

After the accomplishment of the above mentioned
administrative processes at plaintiffs' request, and after
school had begun, it appears to the Court that the issuance of
an 1njunction to effect entrance into Mansfield High School at
this time would be unjust to the school trustees and the
students alike., It is a matter of common knowledge that the
transfer of a child in the middle of a school year, as this
action seeks, may bring about scholastic and emotional
difficulties. This Court cannot in good consclence force this
result by the harsh remedy of injunction, nor does 1t belleve
that the Supreme Court of the United States has made such course
adamantine. In Brown versus Board of Education Chief Justice
Warren admonishes that "the courts will be guided by equitable
principles . . . . characterized by a practical flexibility . . .
and by a facility for adjusting and reconciling public and
private needs," !

The United States Supreme Court decision in the Brown

case that "racial discrimination in public education is
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unconstitutional"zwas interpreted by the Supreme Court of
Texas in McKinney versus Blankenship (decided October 12, 1955)
as nullifying provisions of the Texas Constitution and statutes
requiring segregation in the public schools of Tbxas£3 It is
impossible, however, simply to shut our eyes to the instant
need for care and Jjustice in effectuating integration. The
directions of the United States Supreme Court allow time for
achieving this end. While this does not mean that a long or
unreasonable time shall expire before a plan is developed and
put into use, it does not necessitate the heedless and hasty
use of inJjunction which once issued must be enforced by the
officers of this Court, regardless of consequences to the
students, the school authorities and the public. This school
board has shown that it is making a good faith effort toward
integration, and should have a reasonable length of time to
solve its problems and end segregation in the Mansfield
Independent School District, At this time this sult is
precipitate and without equitable Justiflcation.

"Improvident granting of such injunctions by a
single judge, and the possible unnecessary conflict between
federal and state authority" are "always to be deprecated.“4

Accordingly, I find that judgment should be entered
denying the relief prayed for herein, and that this action
should be dismissed without prejudice.

Let the attorneys for defendants prepare and present
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H a Jjudgment in accordance with this memorandum decision,

Il
l

i

Done at Fort Worth, Texas, this 21st day of

November, 1955,

1 Brown v Board of Education,
349 U.S. 294, supplementing

(Signed)

Joe E, Estes
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE

prior decision reported in
347 U.8, 483.

2 Brown v. Board of Education of
Topeka, 347 U.S. 483, 98 L ed
873, T4 S Ct 686, 38 ALR2d 1180

3 McKinney v. Blankenship, (S.Ct.
Tex. Opinion Oct., 12, 1955, Mandate

Oct., 28, 1955)
25 Tex, S. Ct. Reporter 42,

4 Cumberland Telephone & Tel, Co. V.
Louisiana Public Service Commission,
1922, 260 U,S. 212, 216, 43 S.Ct.

Tex,

9y

75, 76, 67 L.Ed. 217,

Attorneys for Plaintiffs:

L. Clifford Davis
Attorney at Law
Fort Worth, Texas

U, Simpson Tate
Attorney at Law
Dallas, Texas

Robert L, Carter
Attorney at Law

Thurgood Marshall
Attorney at Law

New York, New York

Attorneys for Defendants:

Cantey, Hanger, Johnson, Scarborough & Gooch

Attorneys at Law

Fort Worth,
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Texas.
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I, DENIS DINEEN, Court Reporter, United States Court,
Northern District of Texas, certify that during the trial of
the above styied and numbered cause I took shorthand notes of
the proceedings upon said trial and have transcribed the same
as shown by the above and foregolng 126 pages and that said
transcript is true and correct,

This the 20th day.of November, A.D., 1955,

’/v' | /// -
(Denis Dineen)
Court Reporter.
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